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1 GENERAL

Cementarnica USIE AD Skopje (the “Company” or “USIE”) is a joint stock company, incorporated under North
Macedonian law. The Company's shares are listed on the Official market of the Macedonian Stock Exchange.
The registered seat of the Company is in Republic of North Macedonia at Boris Trajkovski 94 str., 1000 Skopje.

The Company’s business activities cover the production and trade of cement, concrete, aggregates, mortars
and other building materials.

2. SALES PERFORMANCE

CEMENT

Following the trembling year of 2022, the economic situation stabilized in the first quarter of 2023 and
remained stable in terms of prices. In 2023, the total consumption of grey cement on the domestic market
decreased by 5.4% compared to previous year. Following the dropped electricity price and stable sales price,
the market share at the end of the year was slightly decreased vs. 2022.

The quantities exported and sold in the Kosovo market were slightly lower, representing an insignificant
variance compared to both last year and the budgeted projections. Additionally, a notable component of the
export included clinker supplied to both Sharrcem and Kosjeric factories.

Main factors contributing to the decline in the domestic market share include delayed commencement of
certain infrastructure projects; concurrent finalization stages of major projects characterized with low
cement consumption; a moratorium on construction permits in larger cities and inclement weather during
the spring and summer months.

Green Cements

Throughout the year, our main focus was on introduction of environmentally friendly, green cement to the
market. Thus, we ceased the production and sales of packaged CEM II/B from the beginning of the year, with
CEM IV emerging as our bestseller. A parallel shift occurred in October when we discontinued the sale of bulk
CEM II/A and CEM 1I/B assumed its position.

VERTICAL INTEGRATION

We have sustained the positive momentum from the previous year and our RMC unit have ultimately
achieved a very solid EBITDA of 370k EUR, or 249% above the budget projection. This marks the highest
EBITDA achievement in our RMC operations to date. Additionally, our production of ready-mixed concrete
reached 43,633 m3, exceeding the budgeted quantities by 9,1%. Compared to the previous year, we
experienced a notable growth of 20,7% in concrete production and a remarkable 67% increase in EBITDA.
These outstanding outcomes can be attributed to our ongoing efforts to enhance our recipes through
expertise and to optimize operational efficiency, resulting in significant savings.

Moreover, our RMC Unit has remained committed to i'_cs'environmental initiatives, utilizing CEM 11/B V-P-L
42.5R consistently and continually refining concrete formulations to mitigate CO2 emissions, demonstrating
our corporate responsibility towards the environment.

As a company, we persist in the market as a provider of exceptionally high-quality concrete, adhering to best
practices in the industry, a reputation well-regarded by our loyal customer base.

Our limestone quarry in Govrlevo continues with good operation, supplying the cement plant with limestone
and our RMC with aggregates. Additionally, we are trying to penetrate the aggregates market and sell
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limestone fractions to other RMCs. Due to high competition in the area and most of the RMC’s having their
own sources of aggregate, in 2023 we have sold 51kt to third parties which is far below our budgeted 100kt.
Nevertheless, we are considering the options for new quarries in other parts of the city and country.

3. OPERATIONS

The production process was dedicated to fulfilling market demands, covering both domestic and export
requirements, with a particular reference to optimizing operations, material stocks and assets. Aligned with
the efforts on decreasing the use of fossil fuels, in 2023 USIE managed to replace ca. 3.5% of the heat
consumption of the kilns with alternative fuel. Specific fuel heat consumption (SFHC) remains comparable to
the previous year. Preheating of kilns was mainly done using natural gas. Electricity consumption for cement
grinding (kWh per ton cement) was reduced by 2.3% compared to the projections for 2023, as an outcome
due to constant optimization of the process parameters and use of RTO optimization software developed by
TITAN Group. Additionally, the electricity consumption for clinker production has maintained a stable level,
consistent with the previous year. The ratio of clinker to cement remained at a stable level with a slight
decreasing trend.

4. HEALTH & SAFETY

Cementarnica Usje 's number one priority is the safety and health of both our employees and contractors. As
part of TITAN group, our company is committed to continuous improvement in the field of health and safety
of our employees, raising awareness of employee safety, compliance with legal norms and corporate
standards.

At Cementarnica Usje, we are working on developing the safety awareness of both our employees and
contractors. We firmly believe that by increasing the frequency of in-plant safety audits, leading to more
reported dangerous situations and activities, we will reduce the number of injuries, as simultaneously we will
work on addressing and closing the corrective actions.

Guided by this belief, we conduct training for quality safety walks and audits of both our employees and
contractors, which began with these reports in 2023. Thus, in 2023, a total of 279 safety walks and audits
were reported, of which 75 were reported by contractors. 733 incidents were also reported, of which 52 were
near misses for which a detailed analysis was made. In 2023 we also had one insignificant injury with lost
working time of our employee; one injury medical case for a contractor as well as first aid injury for both an
employee and a contractor. Detailed investigation has been carried out and a detailed report has been
prepared, in which corrective measures have been taken, aiming to prevent the repetition of the same or
similar events through the analysis of the facts. Investigating incidents as part of our systemisa good practice
that is carried out continuously for all events that are defined as higher risk incidents or near miss incidents.
The purpose of such investigations is to identify the hidden dangers and analyze the cause, which results in
the improvement of the existing procedures, equipment, as well as the culture of employees and contractors.
Driven by the idea that improving the knowledge of all employees is a key factor for the development of the
safety culture, in 2023 Cementarnica Usje continued with the constant organization of trainings on various
topics covering safety and health aspects, for our employees and contractors. During 2023, 6300 hours of
training were realized for Usje employees or an average of 26.99 hours of training per employee, while 3321
hours were realized for employees of contractors or 16.12 per employee. Health trainings were also
organized, the lectures of which were given by doctors from various fields.

On the World Health and Safety Day, April 28th, the HS department organized an event to promote workplace
safety, to which state institutions representatives such as the Labor Inspectorate, the Protection and Rescue
Directorate, the Crisis Center and others were invited, as well as guest representatives from various
companies from all over the country, collaborators, contractors etc. At the event, Cementarnica Usje shared
its good practices through demonstration of scenarios, according to the main cardinal rules. Furthermore,
awards were presented at the event to recognize excellence in safety, aiming to motivate employees and
foster proactive engagement in the field of workplace safety and health.



5. HUMAN RESOURCES & ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (ESG)

At Cementarnica USJE, we leverage our distinctive capabilities, assets, and connections to generate value
throughout our operations. We pay attention not only to what we do, but also to how we do it, making sure
that we have a positive and lasting impact on all our stakeholders.

In 2023 TITAN Group published revitalized Purpose and Values which were shared and communicated with
all employees. Our purpose guides us toward the impact we want to achieve - making the world a better
place to live in. The purpose statement strikes the balance between humility and ambition, defining why the
company exists, how it operates inclusively, and the innovative solutions it delivers to the world around us.

Our values reflect our daily behaviors and guide us in the pursuit of our purpose, while they also unify us,
foster trust, and connect us with our team members, communities, partners, and customers.

GOOD GOVERNANCE
Human rights, diversity, and inclusion

Consistent with the United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, our company is
committed to respecting and supporting human rights with regard to our employees, the communities where
we operate and the business partners. Human rights are one of the key subject areas of the TITAN Group
Compliance Program, which provides a well-structured framework to address relevant activities in a
disciplined and holistic way across the company.

We are committed to creating an environment that supports diversity, where everyone can thrive and
experience a sense of belonging. This is a continudus process which requires that all involved are aware and
hold a degree of responsibility in nurturing a healthy Company culture which provides a safe environment for
everyone.

it is a significant achievement for our industry to have women make up 40% of the Central Management
Committee.

Anti-bribery and corruption

Addressing anti-bribery and corruption in USJE is crucial for maintaining ethical business practices, fostering
a fair marketplace, and ensuring legal compliance. We implement various measures to prevent and combat
bribery and corruption within our company and TITAN Group as well.

All initiatives and efforts to fight corruption -are supported by and implemented through a strong
organizational structure that sets clear roles and responsibilities and provides increased assurance for good
governance and solid ESG performance.

Compliance program and policies

The Company ensures that conflicts of interest are prevented, and that there is a fair approach to the awards
system, guided by clear procedural guidelines, and the policies of the TITAN Group. Policies are regularly
communicated, and employees are trained accordingly. The employees have access to the EthicsPoint
platform, a tool used for anonymous and confidential reporting of incidents. This software is an additional
tool supporting transparency, which thereby safeguards good governance and integrity.



Group Policies cover all strategic compliance areas such as Anti-Bribery and Corruption, Conflict of interest,
Protection of Personal Data, Competition Law, Global Sanctions, Whistleblowing, Environmental and Climate
mitigation, Human Rights, and Health and Safety. The set of Group Policies is enriched by the Diversity, Equity
and Inclusion Policy and the Group Code of Conduct for Procurement, confirming our commitment to
sustainability and responsibie supply chain management. In 2023, all PDP participants were invited to attend
a training organized by the Supply section on Policy, Code of Conduct and Supply Procedure with a total of

50 training hours.
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION

In 2023 we kept in touch with our stakeholders in our operations, aiming to help the local communities be
more sustainable. We assessed all 32 initiatives under our Community Engagement Plan (CEP), following in-
house criteria of the TITAN ESG Performance System and according to TITAN Framework Guidance for CEPs.
Annual Sustainability Report 2022 has been prepared in accordance with TITAN Group sustainability reporting
standards and with reference to the implementation of the UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 2030,
the UN Global Compact Communication on Progress Guidelines, and the Charter and Guidelines of the Global
Cement and Concrete Association (GCCA).

USIE has signed its commitment to the Club of Responsible Businesses. The Club of Responsible Businesses is
a platform for leading companies that run a sustainable business, ensuring the development of employees,
the community and society. USJE joined the Club along with 36 other member companies, for a strong
commitment to sustainable development and the adoption of business practices that are distinguished by
transparency, environmental awareness, inclusiveness, and respect for the communities in which we work
and invest.

We kept working on the Partnering with school project in 2023, which resulted in improved sanitation
facilities in a primary school in a nearby municipality. We also began partnerships with two local schools to
build a new indoor sports hall and repair the roof, toilets, and fagade.

USJE held an event with prominent journalists from the most popular media in our country to create and
keep positive relations with them as a stakeholder group, listening to their concerns and demands, and
promoting openness and confidence. The CED presented our Annual Sustainability Report and demonstrated
our progress toward meeting the ESG 2025 goals.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT
Employee survey

Regarding the Employee survey that we conducted in 2022, 2023 was the year when we undertook severai
actions that determine our company action plan: enhance leadership skills of people managers to improve
clarity and autonomy of their teams, develop responsibility and job ownership, through clear delegation,
development & increased empowerment, encourage innovative ideas and self-initiative through recognition,
develop responsibility and job ownership, through clear delegation, development & increased
empowerment, strengthen the meritocracy and regular feedback mechanisms and strengthen cooperation
between teams and among departments.

TITAN Group ldeation Challenge

USJE was recognized and awarded two awards at the TITAN Group Management Summit within the first
Group Ideation Challenge. Leaderboard award for the highest number of submitted ideas and Innovation
Award Finalist to our HR team for the most innovative idea Virtual Talent Navigator at the TITAN Group
Ideation Challenge.



People development

We aim to be a high-performing and growing multi-regional cement industry leader, which depends on the
performance and growth of our people. We are committed to appealing to, keeping, and inspiring our
employees. Through various learning programs, our people can broaden their knowledge, learn new skills,
and support business change. In 2023 we realized more than 16.000 training hours in total or 69 training

hours in average per employee.

TITAN Group Leadership development program was launched and USJE’s Electrical Maintenance Manager,
the H&S Manager, and the Head of mechanical maintenance of kilns, raw mills and solid fuel mills are part of
this program.

The Leadership program for new managers was developed, launched, and continued through 2023. Training
sessions for new managers were held, following the individual sessions for each participant.

Employee well-being

We uphold our tradition of putting people first and creating new programs that support employees and their
wellbeing. As part of our ESG targets 2025, we strive to make a secure and healthy work environment and
initiate actions that improve the wellbeing of our employees. Our wellbeing initiatives and programs are
categorized under 4 dimensions: physical, mental, social and financial. In 2023 in the direction of supporting
mental health of our employees, we organized two training sessions covering health topics, precisely
Conscious parenting and delivered 270 training hours:

Employee communication and voluntarism

To foster a good work environment and help employees share the company's vision, USJE held a
Communication Day in 2023 and a Family Day for all employees. In addition to this, team building activities
were quite common in 2023 such as team building for all PDP participants, bowling activities, hiking activities
in Vratnica village and participation in Wizz air marathon.
were quite common in 2023 such as team building for all PDP participants, bowling activities, hiking activities
in Vratnica village and participation in Wizz air marathon.

6. ENVIRONMENTAL

Cementarnica USJE is a holder of A~ Integrated Environmental Permit, issued by the Ministry of Environment
and Physical Planning, confirming the Company’s commitment to environmental protection. As a part of
TITAN Group, the constant sustainable development and improvement in the Environment remain USIE's
leading drivers. The company has implemented, and is maintaining an Environmental Management System
and Energy Management' System. Both systems undergo ongoing enhancements to improve efficiency,
aligning with 1SO 14001:2015 and I1SO 50001:2018 standards. Both systems are part of the Integrated
Management System in USJE. The Environmental System covers all the environmental matters, as well as the
mines exploitation. The systems are maintained and audited on annual basis. We integrate environmental
protection activities into all facets of our operations.

For 2023, we would highlight the following realized projects:

Green Belt

For the purpose of reducing fugitive dust and minimizing the visual impact on neighbouring residential
buildings, we are actively committed to increasing green areas, which positively contribute and influence the
achievement of the mentioned goals. Within the project Green Belt in 2023, a total of 10346 plants were
planted as follows: 2330 trees on the final benches of the marl quarry, 3882 trees at the limestone quarry in



Govrlevo, 2500 trees in the natural pozzolana quarry in Spanchevo, and 1634 plants (trees, flowers, and
bushes) planted at the factory green areas.

Noise minimization

The recorded noise level at monitoring points in the factory perimeter and the quarries consistently remain
within permissible limits. Despite already meeting legal requirements, in 2023, our Company persisted in
implementing noise minimization activities, as part of our commitment to reducing environmental impact,
as outlined in Action plan from the Study of noise minimization developed by Faculty of Technical and Natural
Sciences in Shtip.

Air Emissions

The monitoring of air emissions is a precondition for control and mitigation of the impacts from cement
production on the environment. USIE employs an independent 24-hour-system for continuous monitoring
of emissions, which enables us to closely monitor the emissions in real time and undertake timely corrective
measures, if necessary. As a corporate socially responsible company, USJE publishes weekly reports on air
emissions on the webpage, as well as to the national media.

During the annual overhaul of Kiln no. 3 and Kiln no. 4, a change was made to the filters of the clinker coolers.
The change is made to modernize the existing systems, i.e. replace the existing electrostatic filters with new
modern pneumatic bag filters. This type of system for filtering the exhaust gases from clinker coolers is
considered BAT and is a known practice in cement plants worldwide. The replacement of the filters was done
preventively, even though the existing filters met the requirements for MLV of dust, the Titan Group decided
to invest in new, more modern filters.

Annual average of air emissions from the main emission sources for year 2023, are presented in the following
graphs:
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Reduction of Fugitive Dust Emissions

Following the Action Plan for minimization of fugitive dust emissions in USJE’s Plant and quarries, separated
and combined measures were implemented. Part of the activities implemented in 2023 are:

e Continuous monitoring and change of the auxiliary de-dusting filters,

e Renewal of access roads within the factory - continuous activity,

e Creating a green belt around the plant and quarries - continuous activity.

Based on measurements of PM10 particles performed by an independent accredited laboratory on the
factory perimeter and in accordance with A-IPPC permit, State Environmental Inspectorate confirms that
there is no direct correlation between the operations of USJE’s plant and measured values of PM10 in the
ambient air. These values mainly depend on weather conditions and city pollution.



Usage of Alternative Fuels

In order to reduce the consumption of fossil fuels and in accordance with the A-Integrated environmental
permit, USJE continued to use non-hazardous waste fractions as an alternative fuel and in 2023 managed to
replace 3.5% of the heat energy for the furnaces with alternative fuel. The alternative fuels used in 2023
were biomass from agricultural waste {rice husks and coffee husks), selected waste from the textile industry,
non-recyclable packaging waste, as well as non-reusable composite materials and to recycle. All used
fractions of non-hazardous waste, before being used as an alternative fuel, are examined in the Usje Cement
Laboratory and meet the required quality.

Production and Utilization of Electrical Energy form Renewable Energy Sources

Usje initiated implementation of a project for installation of a Photovoltaic power plant. The project started
in year 2022, implementation was in few stages, and ended in year 2023. The installed photovoltaic plant on
the roof structures of the buildings in the factory covers an area of ~15,000 m?, with an installed capacity of
3.1 MWp. For 2023, the plant produced 0.964 GWh, i.e. about 1% of the total energy consumption of Usje
and saved 1039.16 tons of CO2. Produced energy is fully used for the needs of the factory.

Water management

Usje always strives to minimize the use of potable water and increase the reusage. Reducing the quantity of
water taken from natural resources is the goal of our initiatives like closed-loop cooling systems along
with reusing water from ponds and sedimentation pools. An essential partof our environmental
performance is water management, which helps improve the quality of water resources in our facilities and
the surrounding areas.
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7. OTHER iNFORMATION

USJE’s Management is firmly committed to the continuing integration of the rules and practices into the
Company’s operations, which promote transparency, responsibility, reliability, sustainable development and
corporate social responsibility in every aspect and field of activity of the Company and its entire network of
relationships with shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, contractors and the society. Respectively,
USIE discloses the following information:

1. Dividend Policy

Based on the Company’s dividend policy, dividend is distributed every year, according to proposal
of the Board of Directors and after approval of the Annual Shareholder’s Assembly.
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Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders.

On 16 May 2023, the General Assembly adopted a Decision for profit distribution for the FY 2022 as
following: MKD 629,461 thousand as dividend for the shareholders, and MKD 399,870 thousand
to be reinvested to benefit from the new tax incentives available for such activities. Also, it was
adopted that the unused reinvested profit from the year 2021 in amount of MKD 88,235 thousand
to be distributed to the shareholders as dividend. The total amount of shareholders’ dividend for
distribution was MKD 717,697,032 i.e., MKD 1,273 per share.

The sources of the Company's assets are its operating cash flow. Nevertheless, On 03 November
2022, a short-term Loan Agreement has been concluded between Company for production, trade
and services MILLCO-PCM DOOEL Skopje and Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje ("the Borrower").
MILLCO-PCM DOOEL Skapije provided the borrower with a loan in the amount of 61,500 thousand
denars, money used for corporate purposes. On 31% May 2023 the Loan Agreement has been
Annexed and the amount is to be repaid not later than 10" May 2024, together with the interest
which is calculated at the rate of 2% above 3-month Euribor as a reference interest rate.

On 03 August 2023, a short-term Loan Agreement has been concluded between Company for non-
metals OPALIT DOOEL Cheshinovo-Obleshevo and Cementarnica USIE AD Skopje ("the Borrower").
OPALIT DOOEL provided the borrower with a loan in the amount of 12,000 thousand denars, which
were used for corporate purposes. The amount is to be repaid not later than May 10" 2024,
together with the interest which is calculated at the rate of 2% above 3-month Euribor as a
reference interest rate.

The financial results for 2023 are an integral part of the Financial Statements of the Company and
the Group as of 31 December 2023.

Consequently to the previous, a financial risk management policy was explained in detail in the Note
21 to the Financial Statements of the Company and the Group as of 31 December 2023.

Risk management and compliance

Effective risk management is essential for the achievement of the company'’s strategic goals and
long-term sustainable development. The company has developed agile systems for monitoring,
eliminating, or minimizing various potential and significant risks. The Central Management
Committee is generally responsible for the Company’s risk management plans, implementation and
evaluating their effectiveness each year through management systems. The Board of Directors
confirms that the Company has internal control systems and risk management policies in place and
that it has been informed by the CED and the competent Group executives about their effectiveness.
The assurance mechanism regarding the integrity of the Company’s financial statements consists of
a combination of the embedded risk management processes, the applied financial control activities,
the relevant information technology utilized, and the financial information prepared,
communicated, and monitored. The monthly monitoring of the financial statements is the key
element of the controlling mechanism regarding the quality and integrity of financial resuits.
External auditors review the annual financial statements of the Company.

Our business practices based on compliance are guided by and based on the TITAN Cement Group
values and Code of Conduct. According to the TITAN Group's Anti Bribery and Corruption policy, we
have principles for working with suppliers, contractors, or other related parties. They comply with
all applicable laws and willingly make a contractual commitment, where it is feasible, to represent
that they abide by the relevant anti-bribery and anti-corruption rules.
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6. During 2023, all transactions with the interested parties are realized in the ordinary course of the
business of the Company (Note 19 to the Financial Statements of the Company and the Group as of
31 Decemnber 2023).

7. USIE shares the Titan Group’s CSR Vision and CSR Policy, to “conduct its business in an ethical and
socially responsible manner doing less harm and endeavouring to do more good.”

8. Managing and running of the Company in accordance with our core values is based on adopting and
implementing decisions that contribute to achievement of our goals and strategies, with particular
attention to the interests of our shareholders. During 2023, the Company led a procedure for the
accession of two companies, namely:

- Trade company ID KOMPANI DOOEL s. Cheshinovo, Cheshinovo — Obleshevo, a company fully owned
by Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje and
- Company for non-metals OPALIT DOOEL s. Cheshinovo, Cheshinovo — Obleshevo, a company fully
owned by Trade company ID KOMPANI DOOEL s. Cheshinovo, thus indirectly owned by
Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje.
In the long term and from financial operations and technical aspects, this procedure will achieve the
following extremely important goals: Financial synergy for reducing operating costs, i.e. COSts
efficiency; Optimizing the work process; Optimizing employee engagement and Consolidation of
accounting and management-information systems.

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Corporate Governance Statement

I, the undersigned Mario Bacci, in the capacity of President of the Board of Directors of Cementarnica USIE
AD Skopje, declare that the Company applies the Corporate Governance Code for companies listed on the
Macedonian Stock Exchange, published at the following fink
https://www,.mse.mk/Repaositor v/ %D0%IA%DO%BE %DO%BA%BD0%BS%D0%BA%D1%81/KKU%201a%20ang)
iski%20final.pdf. Cementarnica USIE AD Skopje applies the principles and best practices of corporate
governance provided with the Code according to the “comply or explain” approach, by filling in
questionnaires with form and content prescribed by the Code. With this Statement, | confirm that the
questionnaires were published on SEI-NET and on the website of Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje, as well as
that the answers provided therein are correct, true and reliably reflect the application of the principles and
best practices of corporate governance by Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje.

Mario Bracci
President of the Board of Directors /1

-

Responsibility, transparency and risk managment, as pillars of corporate governance, are the leading drivers
of the Company in direction of increasing reliability, minimizing risks and acheiving long-term success.

Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje is a joint-stock company listed on the Macedonian Stock Exchange in the
Mandatory listing sub-segment.

The share capital of the Cornpany amounts to 1.747.730 thousand denars, represented by 563.784 ordinary
shares with voting right, with nominal value of 3.100,00 denars per share.

The shareholder structure of the Company as of 31 December 2023 is the following:
- TITAN CEMENT Netherlands B.V. holds 535.596 shares corresponding to 95% cf the Company’s voting
rights
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- Others: 28.188 shares corresponding to 5% of the Company’s voting rights.

The Company is managed by a Board of Directors, within the powers set by the Law on Trade Companies and
the Company’s Statute. The Board has the broadest powers to act in the name and on behalf of the Company,
monitors and oversees business operations, long-term interests, implements strategies and oversees the
Company’s performance.

In 2023, the Board was composed of 6 (six) members, as follows: 1 (one) executive member i.e. Chief
Executive Director and 5 {five) non-executive members, of whom 2 (two) are independent. Non of the non-
executive members of the Board receives compensation for participation in the Board of Directors. The Chief
Executive Director does not receive compensation for participation in the Board of Directors. The income
(salaries, other contributions, bonuses, insurance etc.) of the executive member of the Board and other
members of the key staff of the Company for the year 2023 is in total amount of 123,908 thousand denars.

During 2023, the Board of Directors on several occasions adopted various decisions related to the current
operations of the Company. The Board passed decisions without holding sessions, by giving consent for
adoption of the materials through electronic messages, for which Minutes for recording have been drawn
up accordingly. All decisions were adopted with the consent of all Board members. The employees of the
relevant organizational units in the Company looked after timely and correct informing, while providing
organizational and professional support to the Board members.

In 2023, the Annual Shareholders’ meeting was held on 16" May 2023, and an Extraordinary Shareholders’
Meeting was held on 18™ December 2023.

Building trust through transparent work, raising ethical behaviour to the highest level, as well as continuous
contribution to the sustainable development of the community remain the main drivers in the management
of Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje.

)7 %
Mario Bracci

President of the Board of Directors
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Cementarnica Usje AD Skopje

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Cementarnica Usje
AD Skopje and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards applicable in the Republic of
North Macedonia and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing applicable in
the Republic of North Macedonia (the "Standards"). The Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Revizija DOO 16, 8 Septemvri Blvd. Hyperium Business Center, 2nd floor, 1000
Skopje Republic of North Macedonia, VAT No. MK4030008022586, T: +389 2 3140 900, F: +389 2 3116 525,
www.pwc.com/mk
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards applicable in the
Republic of North Macedonia.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Annual report was prepared by the Management in accordance with the requirement of the
article 384 of the Company Law.

Management is also responsible for the preparation of the consolidated annual accounts and
annual report of the Group, which were approved by the Board of Directors.

As required by the Audit Law, we report that the historical information presented in the annual
report prepared by Management of the Group in accordance with article 384 of the Company
Law, is consistent, in all material respects, with the financial information presented in the
consolidated annual accounts and audited consolidated financial statements of the Group, as of
31 December 2023 and for the year then ended.

¥4

e eifece—
(_Dragan Davitkov
General Manager

ragan Davitkov
Certified Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers Revizija DOO Skopje

12 April 2024
Skopje, Republic of North Macedonia
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Notes MKD’000 MKD 000
Sales 3a 6,034,526 6,146,465
Other revenue 3b 94,127 162,382
Cost of sales 3¢ (4,060,078) (4,875,944)
Gross profit 2,068,575 1,432,903
Other operating income 3d 124,077 210,945
Other operating expenses 3e (207,496) (200,198)
Selling and marketing expenses (32,943) (41,496)
Administrative expenses 3f (268,063) (243,071)
Operating profit 1,684,150 1,159,083
Finance income 1,414 1,321
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) net (2,080) (28,083)
Finance costs (20,230) (15,516)
Net finance expense 3g (20,896) (42,278)
Profit before tax 1,663,254 1,116,805
Income tax expense 4 (138,705) (76,033)
Profit for the year 1,524,549 1,040,772
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Investment Property revaluation surplus 8 - -
Translation differences - 44
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,524,549 1,040,817
Net profit for the period attributable to:
Equity holder of the parent company 1,448,322 988,733
Non- controlling interest 76,227 52,039
1,524,549 1.040,772
Earnings per share information:
Basic, profit for the period attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent company 5 2.7 1.85
Total Comprehensive income for the period
attributable to:
Equity holder of the parent company 1,448,322 988,776
Non - controlling interest 76,227 52,041
1,524,549 1,040,817

The accompanying notes from 8 to 47 are an integral part of these financial statements 4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
at 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Notes MKD’000 MKD 000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment PPE 6 3,114,226 2,794,317
Intangible assets 7 33,237 32,594
Goodwill 2,468 2,468
Investment properties 8 280,640 276,172
Exploration and evaluation assets 9 1,220 1,254
3,431,791 3,106,805
Current assets
Inventories 10 1,446,046 1,779,290
Trade and other receivables 11 479,547 640,195
Income tax receivable - 12,465
Short term borrowings 15 15
Cash and short term deposits 12 1,054,162 158,091
2,979,770 2,590,056
TOTAL ASSETS 6,411,561 5,696,861
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 13 1,747,730 1,747,730
Share premium 3,145 2,322
Retained earnings 1,528,862 1,033,645
Other reserves 14 319,725 319,725
Reinvested profit 1,650,335 1,338,700
5,249,797 4,442,122
Non -current liabilities
Provision for retirement benefits 15 55,273 54,055
Provision for rehabilitation of quarries 15,158 7,642
70,431 61,697
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 945,814 831,437
Provision for unused holidays 9,738 6,233
Current portion of retirement benefit obligations 15 3,743 3,174
Income tax payable 66,268 8,338
Short term borrowings 17 65,220 343,630
Dividend payable 550 230
1,091,333 1,193,042
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,411,561 5,696,861
Authorized on behalf of the Board s on 28 February 2024
Nikolaou Konstanfinos.— (@ ; Barlako;(ga\]@(r}\ela
- ._.-" i \ . AL * /] (-/ .
Acting Chi;gf?x f%utive DirectorU.’-’f Finance Manager|ttnd authprized accountant
Kot®
Prepared by authorised accountant with certificate number 102613:
The accompanying notes from 8 to 47 are an integral part of these financial statements 5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Notes 2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income taxes 1,663,254 1,116,805
Adjustments for:
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (1,299)
Depreciation of PPE and Intangible assets 244,245 212,224
Actuarial gains/losses, net 4,183 24
Interest cost, accretion on provision for retirement benefit
obligations 1,966 1,704
Interest income (1,414) (1,321)
Provision for obsolete inventory 18,817 4,236
Provision for unused holidays, net 3,505 2,230
Fair value (gain)/losses, net (4,467) (27,630)
Interest expense and bank charges 18,265 13,811
Write off trade receivables 5,467 6,573
NBYV of disposed and written off PPE 260 1,644
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,954,081 1,329,001
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables 155,180 (150,228)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 314,427 (533,843)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 118,092 (483,489)
Cash generated from operations 2,541,780 161,441
Interest expense and bank charges paid (18,265) (13,811)
Income tax paid (68,310) (70,640)
Net cash flows generated from operations 2,455,206 76,990
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (565,028) (377,233)
Increase/decrease of participation in subsidiaries - 14,660
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 266 345
Interest income received 1.414 1,321
Net cash flows used in investing activities (563,348) (360,907)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to group shareholders (681,814) (245,303)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (35,563) (13,122)
Received borrowings - 1,148,840
Repayment of borrowings (278,409) (805,209)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (995,786) 85,200
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 896,072 (198,711)
Net foreign exchange differences - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 158,090 356,802
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 1,054,162 158,091

The accompanying notes from 8 to 47 are an integral part of these financial statements 6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Share Share Retained Other Reinvested
capital premium earnings Reserves profit Total
(Note 14)
MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000
At 1 January 2023 1,747,730 2,322 1,033,645 319,725 1,338,700 4,442,122
Profit for the year - - 1,524,549 - - 1,524,549
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive
income - - 1,524,549 - - 1,524,549
Dividends, net - - (717,697) - - (717,697)
Transfer to retained earnings - - 88,235 (88,235) -
Reinvested profit - - (399,870) - 399,870 -
Share options - 823 - - - 823
At 31 December 2023 1,747,730 3,145 1,528,862 319,725 1,650,335 5,249,797
On 16 May 2023, the General Assembly brought a Decision for distribution of the remaining dividend for the year
ended 2022. The dividend declared was in amount of MKD 717,697 thousand which consists of MKD 88,235
thousand profit from 2021 and MKD 629,462 thousand profit from 2022. The remaining profit from 2022 in
amount of MKD 399,870 thousand was reinvested to benefit from the new tax incentives available for such
activities.
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Share Share Retained Other Reinvested
capital premium earnings Reserves profit Total
(Note 14)
MKD’000 MKD 000 MKD 000 MKD’000 MKD 000 MKD 000
At 1 January 2022 1,747,730 1,122 484,101 319,681 1,105,778 3,658,412
Profit for the year - - 1,040,772 - - 1,040,772
Reversal of deferred tax - - 94) - - (94)
Other comprehensive income
(translation differences) - - - 4 - 44
Total comprehensive
income - - 1,040,678 44 - 1,040,722
Dividends, net - - (258,213) - - (258,213)
Transfer to retained earnings - - 216,886 (216,886) -
Reinvested profit - - (449,807) - 449,807 -
Share options - 1,201 R - R 1,201
At 31 December 2022 1,747,730 2,322 1,033,645 319,725 1,338,700 4,442,122

On 20 May 2022, the General Assembly brought a Decision for distribution of the remaining dividend for the year
ended 2021 after the payment of the advanced dividend for the period 1 January - 30 June 2021 in accordance with
the Company Law. The dividend declared was in amount of MKD 708,020 thousand which consists of MKD
41,327 thousand profit from 2021, MKD 216,886 thousand reinvested profit from 2016. The remaining profit from
2021 in amount of MKD 449,807 thousand was reinvested to benefit from the new tax incentives available for
such activities.

The accompanying notes from 8 to 48 are an integral _ part of these financial statements 4




7,
éTITAN

CEMENTARNICA USIE

Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2023

1. Corporate information

Cementarnica “Usje” A.D. - Skopje (“the Company”) is incorporated in the Republic of North
Macedonia with the registered address at Boris Trajkovski 94, Skopje. The Company as of 31
December 2023 has one subsidiary in the Republic of North Macedonia- ID Kompani DOOEL also
with 100% holding (together referred to as “the Group”).

The Company’s main activity is production and trade with cement, masonry cement, ready mix
concrete, clinker and other related products. The main activity of the domestic subsidiary is
production of mill products. The domestic subsidiary ID Kompani DOOEL owns the Opalit
DOOEL Cesinovo which main activity is other mining activities and exploration of stones.

The Group is controlled by Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. registered in Netherlands, which has
95% shareholding in the Company. As of 31 December 2023 Group’s ultimate parent is Titan
Cement International S.A. Belgium.

Officially starting from 1 July 2013, Cementarnica “Usje” A.D. - Skopje has become a listed
company on the Macedonian Stock Exchange (under the sub-segment for mandatory listing). The
listed companies has continuing obligations to publish all price sensitive information, information
necessary for evaluating the current company’s condition.

The number of employees of the Group as of 31 December 2023 was 242 (31 December 2022:
234).

The Group financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2024. These financial statements are subject to approval
from the Group’s Shareholders Assembly.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
Company Law (Official Gazette of Republic of Macedonia No. 28/04, 84/05, 25/07, 87/08, 42/10,
48/10, 24/11, 166/12, 70/13 119/13, 120/13, 187/13, 38/14, 41/14, 138/14, 88/15, 192/15, 6/16,
30/16, 61/16, 64/18, 120/18, 239/18 and 290/20 and the Official Gazette of Republic of North
Macedonia no. 215/2021 and 99/2022) and Accounting Principles applicable in the Republic of
Macedonia (“Macedonian GAAP”), which are in accordance to the new Rulebook of Accounting
published on 29 December 2009 (Official Gazette of Republic of Macedonia 159/09 , 164/10 and
107/11) effective from 1 January 2010. This Rulebook comprise the basic text of IFRS's including
SIC’s and IFRIC’s as issued by IASB at 1 January 2009.

In the period as of 31 December 2009 applicable standards were the International Accounting
Standards published in Official Gazette of Republic of North Macedonia which comprise the
following:

e The revisions of International Accounting Standards, IAS 1 to IAS 39 were published on 30
December 2004, previously effective as of 5 November 1999.The effective date for all revised
standards is January 1, 2005. In addition, International Accounting Standards, IAS 40 and IAS
41 were published with the effective date 1 January 2005.

e On 10 February 2005 International Financial Reporting Standard 1 was published. The effective
date was set to 17 February 2005.

e On 29 December 2005 International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 2 to IFRS 7 were
published. The effective date was set to 30 December 2005.

8
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

IFRS 9, IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IFRS 13, IFRS 14, IFRS 15, IFRS 16, IFRS 17, IFRIC 18,
IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 21, IFRIC 22 and IFRIC 23 are not included in the Rule Book for
Accounting and are not applied by the Group.

On April 3, 2024, a new Rulebook of Accounting was published (issued in the Official Gazette of
Republic of North Macedonia, No. 75/24), which includes the updated IFRS, IFRIC, and SIC, as
well as IFRS, IFRIC, and SIC, for which it is stated above that are not part of the existing Rulebook
of Accounting. The new Rulebook of Accounting will be applicable starting from January 1, 2025,
except for the International Financial Reporting Standard 17 Insurance Contracts, which will be
applicable from January 1, 2028. The company is in the process of assessing the impact of the new
Rulebook of Accounting on the financial statements.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
for the investment property that have been measured at fair value. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements are presented in Macedonian Denars (“MKD”) which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands (‘000)
except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on accruals and going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary, ID Kompani Dooel import export Kocani with 100% holding which has one subsidiary
in its full ownership, OPALIT DOOEL v. Cheshinovo - Obleshevo.

The financial statements of the consolidated subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year
as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies.

On 18 December 2017 the Group received Electricity trading license which raise certain
responsibilities towards the State Regulatory Committee. In 2019 only one transaction related to
trading of electricity and further no activities related to the license raised up.

All intra-group income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
that are recognized in assets, are eliminated in full. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Investment in subsidiary

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company controls another entity.

b. Operating segments

Operating segments are components that engage in business activities that may earn revenues or
incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Management and for which
discrete financial information is available.
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

b. Operating segments (continued)

The Management is the person or group of persons who allocates resources and assesses the
performance for the entity.

In the Group, the above described functions of the Management are performed by Board of the
Directors of the Group. The internal reporting within the Group presented to the Board of Directors
is on a Group level and as one operating segment. The decisions brought by the Board of Directors
are based on received reports presented as one operating segment.

¢. Comparatives

In order to maintain consistency with the current year presentation, certain items may have been
reclassified for comparative purposes. Material changes in disclosures, if any, are described in
detail in the relevant notes.

d. Foreign currency translation

The Group and the Company prepare the financial statements in Macedonian denars, which is the
Group’s and the Company’s functional currency and the presentation currency for local statutory
purposes. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements in each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the
date of transaction. Monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
All differences are taken to profit or loss.

The functional currency of the domestic entities is Macedonian denar and of the foreign operations,
is the Euro. As of each reporting date, the assets and liabilities of this subsidiary are translated
through conversion in euro into the presentation currency of Cementarnica “USJE” AD (the
Macedonian Denars) at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date of 2022: 61.4932 MKD for
Euro 1 and, its profit or loss is translated at the weighted average exchange rate for 2022: MKD
61.6153 for Euro 1. The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to other
comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognized
in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

e. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated as follows:

* those assets acquired up to 31 December 1998, the revaluation under the previous GAAP at the
date of transition of the Group to IFRS (1 January 2004) was accepted as deemed cost since
the revaluation was broadly comparable to depreciated cost under IFRS adjusted to reflect
changes in general price index.

= those assets acquired after 31 December 1998 are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and / or accumulated impairment loss, if any.

10
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

e. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are inchided in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Profit or Loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment that are retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from
the statement of financial position, along with the corresponding accumulated depreciation. Gains
and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the profit or loss.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, with exception of quarries, is designed to write off the
cost or valuation of property, plant and equipment on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The principal depreciation rates in use are:

Buildings 2.5-10%
Equipment 5-25%

Land is stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment and is not
depreciated as it is deemed to have an infinite life, except quarries which are depreciated on a
depletion basis. This depletion is recorded as the material extraction process advances based on the
unit of production method.

The asset’s methods of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end.

f. Investment property

Investment property, comprising of land, production premises with business offices and
construction object - restaurant and cafeteria room, is held for long-term rental yields and is not
occupied by the Group. The investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the market
conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise, including the
corresponding tax effect. Fair values are determined based on valuation performed by independent
valuer using the income method and the market comparison method as primary valuation methods
which are generally accepted in European valuation practice.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized
in the income statement in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied property, the cost for subsequent accounting is the
fair value at the date of change in use.

If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group’s accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of
change in use. Any difference at that date between the carrying amount of the property in
accordance with IAS 16 and its fair value is treated in the same way as a revaluation in accordance
with IAS 16.
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For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.2Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

g. Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation expenditure for each area of interest (geographically specific to the
concession, permit or mining license granted) is carried forward as an asset if a decision has been
made that a mining operation is economically feasible and can be developed for commercial
production. At the end of the reporting period, these costs include costs of acquisition of rights to
explore. All other exploration and evaluation expenditures are charged to the profit or loss as

incurred.
Administrative and general expenses relating to exploration and evaluation activities are expensed

as incurred.

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

(i) Financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial
assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All financial
assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. Purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade dateline., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables, and
short term loans.

Subsequent measurement - Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method (EIR). The gains and losses are recognized in the income statement
in the moment when the loans and receivables are reversed or when the value is decreased due to
impairment, and through the amortization process.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets)is derecognized when:
o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group any has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event')
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. Individually significant financial assets are tested
for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in
groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. All impairment losses are recognized in the
income statement.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the reversal
is recognized in profit or loss.

(ii) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in
the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement- Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in in profit
and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization process.
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For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as ad recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

i. Imnventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads, excluding distribution costs and
administrative expenses. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Tools and consumable stores are written-off 100% when consumed.

j- Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, the giro account and deposits held at call with banks
with original maturities of up to three months or less.

k. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
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For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1. Share-based, long-term, incentive plan

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to members of senior management via Group share
schemes that cover several subsidiaries. Currently, the Group has the following schemes: 1) the share
options plans (2014 and 2017) and 2) the long-term incentive plan introduced in 2020, which concerns

share awards.

A Group share-based payment transaction is classified from the perspective of each reporting
Company, rather than by making a single classification determination that is applicable to all Group
Companies. The Company participates in the 2020 long-term incentive plan, which is classified as
cash-settled in the financial statements of the Group, but it is classified as equity-settled in the
Company’s separate financial statements, as the Group has no obligation to settle the award.
Consequently, it recognises the fair value of the awards as an employee benefits expense in profit or
loss, with a corresponding increase in equity.

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted,
which is based on the parent’s share price on grant date. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which the specified service conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of awards that are expected to
vest based on the specified vesting conditions and forfeiture rate. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

m. Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill;
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.2Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

m. Taxation (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

n. Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group, in the normal course of business, makes payments on behalf of its employees for
pensions, health care, employment and personnel tax which are calculated according to the statutory
rates in force during the year, based on gross salaries and wages. Food allowances travel expenses
and holiday allowances are also calculated according to the local legislation. The Group makes these
contributions to the Government’s health and retirement funds. The cost of these payments is charged
to the profit or loss in the same period as the related salary cost.

The Group does not operate any other pension scheme or post-retirement benefits plan and
consequently, has no obligation in respect of pensions.

Termination and retirement benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the
normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either terminate the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy.

Pursuant to the Group’s signed collective bargaining agreements the Group is obligated to pay
retirement benefits in an amount equal to six average republic salaries and between one and three
average republic salaries to be paid out as a jubilee. anniversary award. The number of average
republic salaries for jubilee anniversary awards corresponds to the total number of years of service
of the employee as presented in the table below:

Total number of Service Years Number of Wages
10
20
30
35 (women)
40 (men)

W W W W =
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For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

n. Employee benefits (continued)

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the Project
Unit Credit Method. According to the model, the probability of the cash outflow is estimated by
calculating probabilities of three decrements: death, invalidity and turnover rate. The probability
table is constructed by using assumptions about the probability of death of the employee up to the
date when he/she should retire, the probability that the employee will retire earlier due to invalidity
and the probability that the employee will terminate the service in the Group before the date when
he/she should retire. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using the discount rate from the yields on the
government bonds issued in Macedonia in 2023 and classified by maturity.

Employee’s children scholarships

Starting from 31 December 2009, included in the actuarial calculation of defined benefits are
allowances for scholarships of Group employees children attending graduate or post graduate
studies and for diseased employee children that are attending secondary school.

Additional benefits at retirement

Starting from 31 December 2013, the actuarial calculation of defined benefits has been supplement
with calculation of the present value of the newly introduced long term benefit for certain category
of employees - additional benefits at retirement. The calculation is made on the basis of the average
parameters of the mentioned population and total expected amount for payment, delivered by the
enterprise.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

o. Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when:
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. The provisions comprise of provision for retirement benefits and provision for
rehabilitation of quarries. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to time values is
recognized as interest expense.
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For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

P-

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates and other sales taxes or duty. The following
specific criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods are transferred to the buyer.

Rendering of services

Fees from services provided are recognized over the period in which the services are rendered and
accepted by the buyer.

Interest income
The interest relates to time deposit are accounted for at the expired date of time deposit.
Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight
line basis over the lease terms.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group’s shareholders.

Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period, which provide evidence of conditions that exist as of the reporting

date, are treated as adjustable events in these financial statements. Those that are indicative of
conditions that arose after the reporting date have been treated as non-adjustable events.
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For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

t. Financial risk management
Accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market.

Fair value of financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other current financial assets mainly have short
term maturity. The nominal value less estimated loss due to impairment of assets and payables with
maternity less than one year is approximates their fair value. Financial liabilities included in the
category Trade and other payables mainly have short term maturity. For this reason, their carrying
amounts at the reporting date approximate their fair values. The fair value of the long-term financial
liabilities is determined by using discounted cash-flow valuation technique.

v. Determination of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.. Where applicable, further
information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific
to that asset or liability.

2.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

a. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The most
critical estimates and assumptions are discussed below.

(i) Useful lives of assets

The determination of the useful lives of assets is based on historical experience with similar assets
as well as any anticipated technological development and changes in broad economic or industry
factors. The appropriateness of the estimated useful lives is reviewed annually, or whenever there
is an indication of significant changes in the underlying assumptions.

Further, due to the significant weight of depreciable assets in Group’s total assets, the impact of
any changes in these assumptions could be material to Group’s financial position, and results of
operations. If depreciation cost is decreased/increased by 1%, this would result in change of annual
depreciation expense of approximately 2,440 thousand denars (2022: 2,122 thousand denars).
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For the period ended 31 December 2023

2.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)

(ii) Potential impairment of property. plant and equipment and intangibles
The Group is assessing the impairment of identifiable property, plant, equipment and intangibles
whenever there is a reason to believe that the carrying value may materially exceed the recoverable
amount and where impairment in value is anticipated. The recoverable amounts are determined by
value in use calculations, which use a broad range of estimates and factors affecting those.

Among others, the Group typically considers future revenues and expenses, macroeconomic
indicators, technological obsolescence, discontinuance of operations and other changes in
circumstances that may indicate impairment. If impairment is identified using the value in use
calculations, the Group also determines the fair value less cost to sell (if determinable), to calculate
the exact amount of impairment to be charged (if any). As this exercise is highly judgmental, the
amount of potential impairment may be significantly different from that of the result of these
calculations.

(iii) Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group calculates impairment for doubtful accounts based on estimated losses resulting from
the inability of its customers to make required payments as explained in section for financial assets.

(iv) Provisions

Provisions in general are highly judgmental, especially in the cases of legal disputes. The Group
assesses the probability of an adverse event as a result of a past event to happen and if the
probability is evaluated to be more than fifty percent, the Group fully provides for the total amount
of the liability. The Group is rather prudent in these assessments, but due to the high level of
uncertainty, in some cases the evaluation may not prove to be in line with the eventual outcome of
the case.

(v) Fair value of investment property

The investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the market conditions at the
reporting date. Fair values are determined based on annual valuation performed by independent
value using the income method and the market comparison method as primary valuation methods
which are generally accepted in European valuation practice.

Provisions for environmental restoration

Companies that operate quarries and processing sites are required to restore these quarries and
processing sites at the end of their producing lives to a condition that is in line with the prevailing
environmental legislation of the country in which the Company operates (to restore the land within
3 years after the closure of the mine site), to the level acceptable to the relevant authorities and to
the level that is consistent with the Company's environmental policies and practices.

The provision for environmental restoration reflects the present value of the expected future
restoration costs that are expected to be incurred for the areas that have been disturbed at the
reporting date. The provision is determined as present value of expected future cash outflows to be
incurred for sites rehabilitation. This includes determination of the amount based on rehabilitation
project, discount rate and expected inflation rates. The provision is re-measured at every reporting
date and is adjusted to reflect the present value of the future expenses required to fulfil the
obligation.
20
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2.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)

The present value of estimated restoration costs (that is, original estimation as well as changes in
the accounting estimates) are charged to the profit or loss unless they relate to property, plant and
equipment that is on the site, in which case the costs are included within property, plant and
equipment and depreciated over the useful life of the related item of property, plant and equipment.

Any change in the net present value of the environmental provision due to the passing of time is
included in finance costs in the profit or loss.

Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net
cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact
the carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate
that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be
required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group
considers the discount rate of the Central Bank of Republic of Macedonia due to the absence of the
market of high quality corporate bond or government bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension liability.

2.4 Business Combination

The Group acquired 100% of the share capital of ID Kompani for 21 mil MKD cash on 4 November
2020. ID Kompani owns 100% of the equity of OPALIT Dooel a Company holding certain
exploration and development licences for Opalt. ID Kompani has been acquired to gain access to
additional reserves for the Group. The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities purchased as
at the date of acquisition were:

. . Carrying value
Assets Fair value MKD <000 arrl\}/IIK% 000
Property, plant and equipment 10,761 10,761
Exploration and evaluation costs 333 333
Inventories 6,988 6,988
Trade and other receivables 7,876 7,876
Cash and cash equivalents 259 259
26,217 26,217

Liabilities
Trade and other payables 4,304 4,304
Short term borrowings 301 301
4,606 4,606
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 21,611 21,611
Consideration paid in 2021 24,079 -
Goodwill on acquisition of the subsidiary 2,468 -

Management determined the fair value of the property, plant and equipment on bases on the fair value
exercise in which replacement-cost approach was used to determine the fair value.
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3. Revenue and expenses

a. Sales

Domestic market
Foreign market

Domestic market
Sales of cement
Sales of other products

Foreign market
Sales of cement
Sales of other products

2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000
3,931,318 4,014,416
2,103,208 2,132,049
6,034,526 6,146,465
3,658,496 3,773,858

272,822 240,558
3,931,318 4,014,416
1,543,658 1,593,320

559,550 538,729
2,103,208 2,132,049

Sales of other products consist of sales of pet coke and coal, limestone, RMC, clinker, pozzolana

and bauxite.

b. Other revenues

Freight
Others

c. Cost of sales

Production costs

Cost of traded goods
Depreciation
Distribution expenses

Inventory change

2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000
91,351 159,441
2,776 2,941
94,127 162,382
2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000
3,361,995 4,124,213
299,506 557,242
227,276 194,841
205,150 240,559
(33,849) (240,911)
4,060,078 4,875,944

Production cost consist of kiln fuel, electricity, raw materials, concession fee and other variable
cost. Fixed costs which consist of cost of salaries and other benefits, contract labors, security
services, cost for quality test and other fixed cost such as cost for calibration, intellectual services

etc are also included in production costs.
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3. Revenues and expenses (continued)
d. Other operating income
2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000
Revenues from sold materials 40,306 64,694
Rent income 19,001 20,919
Others 64,770 125,332
124,077 210,945
Others in amount of 64,770 thousand denars (2022: 125,332 thousand denars) includes mainly
gains from fair valuations, expatriate income and re-invoicing of cost for business premises.
e. Other operating expenses
2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD 000
Cost of sold materials 41,260 61,979
Other business loses 74,642 2,586
Sales support fee - 47,773
Others 91,594 87,860
207,496 200,198
Other expenses consist mainly of restructuring, expatriate cost and business premisses costs.
f. Administrative expenses
2023 2022
MKD 000 MKD 000
Technical support and know-how services 128,066 111,070
Promotion and advertisement 24,584 23,415
Depreciation 12,294 13,413
Other expenses 103,119 95,173
268,063 243,071

Technical support and know-how services consist of provided technical support and know-how
services as well as audit and legal fees. More specifically, technical support and know-how services
refers to engineering & technology services, procurement, finance services, information
technology, legal services, human resources, corporate and social responsibility, corporate

communications services etc.

Other administrative expenses consist of salaries and related expenses, accommodation, IT and
telecoms, car expenses, provision for staff leaving indemnities and retirement benefit obligation

etc.
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6. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Land and Construction

Buildings Equipment in progress Total

MKD 000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’ 000
Cost
At 1 January 2022 3,699,820 5,184,845 324,538 9,209,203
Additions 20,400 2,868 328,858 352,126
Transfers from Construction in
Progress 105,728 303,282 (409,010) -
Transfer to Investment Property ’
Translation differences 6) 2) 8
Disposals and write offs (10,595) (26,878) (37,473)
At 31 December 2022 3,815,347 5,464,115 244,386 9,523,848
Depreciation
At 1 January 2022 2,320,707 4,228,570 - 6,549,277
Charge for the period 43,376 161,920 205,296
Transfer to Investment Property
Translation differences (1) 2) 3)
Disposals and write offs (4,217) (20,822) (25,039)
At 31 December 2022 2,359,865 4,369,666 - 6,729,531
Net book value
at 31 December 2022 1,455,482 1,094,449 244,386 2,794,317
Net book value
at 1 January 2022 1,379,113 956,275 324,538 2,659,926
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7. Intangible Assets
Construction in
Licences progress Total

MKD 000 MKD 000 MKD 000
Cost
At 1 January 2023 60,649 - 60,649
Additions 2,651 12,701 15,352
Transfers from Construction in
Progress 12,701 (12,701) -
Transfers to Property, Plant and
Equipment (2,651) - (2,651)
At 31 December 2023 73,350 - 73,350
Depreciation
At 1 January 2023 28,055 - 28,055
Charge for the year 12,058 - 12,058
At 31 December 2023 40,113 - 40,113
Net book value at 31 December
2023 33,237 - 33,237
Net book value at 1 January
2023 32,594 - 32,594

Construction in
Licences progress Total

MKD 000 MKD 000 MKD 000
Cost
At 1 January 2022 35,542 - 35,542
Additions - 25,107 25,107
Transfers from Construction in
Progress 25,107 (25,107) -
At 31 December 2022 60,649 - 60,649
Depreciation
At 1 January 2022 21,541 - 21,541
Charge for the year 6,514 - 6,514
At 31 December 2022 28,055 - 28,055
Net book value at 31 December
2022 32,594 - 32,594
Net book value at 1 January
2022 14,001 - 14,001
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8. Investment property

2023 2022

MKD’000 MKD’000

Opening balance at 1 January 276,172 250,812
Gain/(losses) from fair value adjustment 4,468 25,360
Closing balance at period/year end 280,640 276,172

The investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are
included in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise, including the corresponding tax
effect. Fair values are determined based on annual valuation performed by independent appraisal
using the income method and the market comparison method as primary valuation methods which
are generally accepted in European valuation practice.

Investment property principally comprise of land, production premises and construction object -
restaurant, cafeteria room which is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by the
Group.

2023 2022

MKD’ 000 MKD 000

Rental income derived from investment properties 18,169 19,625
Profit arising from investment properties carried at

fair value 18,169 19,625

As of 31 December 2023, the Company revalued its investment property based on a valuation
performed by an independent valuer, Grant Thornton Consulting DOO Skopje. The valuation
model is in accordance with International Valuation standards 2017, Law on Valuation and
Methodology for valuation of property published in Official Gazette of RM.

The methodology used and key inputs to the valuation of the investment properties are as follows:

Methodology Inputs Ranges
Buildings Income method ‘Vacancy rate 5%
plot
Landlord costs 5%
Capitalization rate 9.88-
10.04%
Land plot =~ Market approach - sales  Asking prices of comparable land plots
comparison method in the region of Municipality Kisela 42 to 196
Voda -Skopje and similar other euro/m?2
locations
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8. Investment property (continued)

9.

Significant increases (decreases) in the estimated landlord costs would result in a significant lower
(higher) fair value of properties. Significant increases (decreases) in the capitalization rate in
isolation would result in a significant lower (higher) fair value of properties.

As a result of the valuation, as of 31 December 2023 the carrying value of the Company’s
investment property is adjusted / increased for MKD 4,468 thousand which has been recognized as
fair value gain in amount of MKD 4,468 thousand in the Company’s profit and loss for the year

ended 31 December 2023 (See Note 3d).

The fair value measurement was made using valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair measurement is unobservable (level 3).

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during 2023.

Exploration and evaluation assets
Exploration and

evaluation of mineral

recourses Total
MKD’000 MKD’000
Cost
At 1 January 2023 1,719 1,719
Additions - -
De-recognition - -
At 31 December 2023 1,719 1,719
Depreciation
At 1 January 2023 465 465
Charge for the period 34 34
De-recognition
At 31 December 2023 499 499
Net book value at 31 December 2023 1,220 1,220
Net book value at 1 January 2023 1,254 1,254

Exploration and
evaluation of mineral

recourses Total

MKD 000 MKD’000
Cost
At 1 January 2022 1,719 1,719
Additions - -
De-recognition = —
At 31 December 2022 1.719 1.719
Depreciation
At 1 January 2022 365 365
Charge for the period 100 100
De-recognition - -
At 31 December 2022 465 465
Net book value at 31 December 2022 1,254 1,254
Net book value at 1 January 2022 1,354 1,354
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10. Inventories

Raw materials and fuel

Spare parts

Consumable stores

Finished goods

Semi-finished goods

Packing materials

Goods for resale

Prepayments for inventory purchase

11. Trade and other receivables

Trade debtors
Prepayments
Other current assets

2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000
424,895 843,422
337,096 314,027
281,571 228,444
128,678 154,783
244,988 190,726
27,679 46,768
327 395

812 725
1,446,046 1,779,290
2023 2022
MKD 000 MKD’000
347,198 411,808
87,879 195,265
44,470 33,121
479,547 640,195

Other current assets relates to receivables from rented land and PPE, receivables from re-invoiced
costs for rented premises, then accruals for insurance premium, accruals for receivables for interest
on forex bank deposit, receivables on disposal of tangible and intangible assets and other accruals

and receivables.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 0- 75 days terms.

The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

Neither past
due nor

Past due but not impaired

Total Impaired <30 days

2023 347,198 246,380 58,566
2022 411,808 235,279 94,748

30-60 days
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60-90 days

9,469
10,098

90-120 days  >120days

2,855 6,285
10,953 24,410



Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje

/
%me

CEMENTARNICA USJE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2023

12. Cash and cash receivables

13

2023 2022
MKD 000 MKD’000
Cash at bank 1,054,162 158,091
1,054,162 158,091
Share capital
Number
Authorized, issued and fully paid of shares % holding
Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. - ordinary shares of MKD 3,100 each 535,596 95%
Other shareholders - ordinary shares of MKD 3,100 each 28,188 5%
563,784 100%
Amount
MKD 000
Share capital as registered
At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 1,747,730
Dividends paid and proposed
Declared and paid during the period ended 31 December 2022
Final dividend for 2021:
MKD 458 per share
Declared: 258,213
Paid: 258424
Declared and paid during the period ended 31 December 2023
Final dividend for 2022:
MKD 1,273 per share
Declared: 717,697
Paid: 717,376

Dividends declared and paid entirely relate to cash dividends on ordinary shares.

Share-based payments

On 31 December 2023, the number of the awards granted to the employees of the Company was 6,343
(2022:5,880), of them 140 were canceled (2022:0). The fair value of the award was calculated based on the
grant date of the award price of the TCI share, in Euronext Brussels. The calculation of the un forfeited awards
results in the recognition of an expense, net of MKD 1,052 thousand (2022:1,202) with a corresponding
increase (2022: increase).

Balance at 1 January 2022 3,940
Granted 1,940
Exercised -
Non vested -
Cancelled -
Balance at 31 December 2022 5,880
Granted 1,678
Exercised (1,075)
Non vested -
Cancelled (140)
Balance at 31 December 2023 6,343
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14. Other reserves

Investment Foreign

Asset Statutory Property currency
revaluatio reserves revaluation translation Total

n reserve reserve reserve
MKD’000 MKD 000 MKD’000 MKD 000 MKD 000
At 1 January 2022 2 174,772 145,022 (115) 319,681
Translation difference - - - 44 44
At 31 December 2022 2 174,772 145,022 (71) 319,725

Other comprehensive income

(Note 8) - - - - - -
At 31 December 2023 2 174,772 145,022 71 319,725

Foreign currency translation reserves

The foreign currency translation reserves are used for recording foreign exchange differences which

rise from translation of currency in the financial statements of the foreign subsidiary.

Legal reserves

According to Law on Trading Companies, the Group is required to have compulsory statutory
reserve established through appropriation of its net profits. With the changes of the Law on Trading
Companies effective from 1* January 2013, the Group is required to set aside 5 percent of its net
statutory profit for the year in a statutory reserve until the level of the reserve reaches 1/10 of the
share capital. The Group has achieved the required minimum in prior years and consequently no

appropriation in 2023 has been made.

15. Provision for retirement benefits

Defined retirement benefit obligations
Defined jubilee anniversary award obligations
Defined scholarship obligations

Reservation for retention plan

Analyzed as:

Non-current portion
Current portion

33

2023 2022

MKD 000 MKD’000
10,403 12,203

15,297 13,949

26,152 21,772

7,164 9,305

59,016 57,229

55,273 54,055

. 3,743 3,174
59,016 57,229
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15. Provision for retirement benefits (continued)

The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:

2023 2022
MKD 000 MKD 000
At 1 January 57,229 58,583
Current service costs 4,579 5,494
Interest cost, accretion on provision for retirement benefit
.. 1,966
obligations 1,704
Recognised actuarial (gains)/losses, net (397) (5,471)
63,377 60,310
Benefits paid during the year (4,361) (3,081)
At 31 December 59,016 57,229
The amounts recognised in the profit and loss are as follows:
2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD 000
Current service costs 4,579 5,494
Interest cost, accretion on provision for retirement
benefit obligations 1,966 1,704
Recognised actuarial (gains)/losses, net (397) (5,471)
6,148 1,728

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for change in the discount rate and wage growth as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 is as shown below:

2023

Assumptions Discount rate Wage growth

Sensitivity Level 1% 1% 1% 1%
increase decrease increase decrease

In% In% In% In%

Retirement benefits

Impact on the net defined benefit 9,2) 11,0 11,5 9,7

obligations

Jubilee awards

Impact on the net defined benefit (6,3) 7,3 7,3 6,5

obligations
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15. Provision for retirement benefits (continued)

2022
Assumptions Discount rate Wage growth
Sensitivity Level 1% 1% 1% 1%
increase decrease increase decrease
In% In % In% In%
Retirement benefits
Impact on the net defined benefit 9.4) 11.3 12.7 (10.7)
obligations
Jubilee awards
Impact on the net defined benefit (7.4) 8.6 9.2 8.0)
obligations
The following payments are expected contributions to be made in the future years:
2023 2022
MKD 000 MKD 000
Year 1 3,772 2,677
Year 2 5,288 3,636
Year 3 6,090 4,904
Year 4 6,231 4,686
Year 5 5,165 5,212
Years 6-10 31,711 25,233
Over 10 years 197,027 130,385

The principal actuarial assumptions used in 2023 by the independent actuaries were as follows:

Mortality

The mortality of the employees until the date of retirement is estimated with the population
mortality table of the Republic of Croatia 2010 - 2012, Although the State statistical office of the
Republic in North Macedonia on a regular basis issues mortality tables, these tables are not
adequate for actuarial calculations due to the following reasons:

- The Macedonian mortality tables are not graduated and do not satisfy the required actuarial
properties,

- In the model, the annual probability of death of an employee in the Group varies according to the
age on the date of calculation and his/her gender, by using the convention “age last birthday”.

Turnover rate

From the data analysis of the turnover scheme of all employees that were employed in the Group
since 1953, the data was classified into two categories: data for employees that were employed in
and after 1992 and data for employees that were employed before 1992, The reason for such
classification is the different dynamics in the turnover rates that is observed in the two categories,
Namely, from the data it is observable that the employees who were employed before 1992 have
tendency to cancel their employment few years before retirement (after fulfilling more than 12
years in service in the Group), thus not getting the lump sum payments on retirement, which is not
the case for employees who were employed in or after 1992 who usually cancel the employment in
the first 12 years of their employment in the Group.
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15. Provision for retirement benefits (continued)

The category of employees who were employed before 1992 are modelled as a runoff portfolio,
having regarded that out of all employees who were employed on 31.12.2013-2023, in average 10%
- 22% were cancelling their employment annually, for the purpose of the model for this category
of employees, 10% rate is used.

For the category of employees who were employed in or after 1992, the analysis of data shows
dependences between the annual cancelation rate and the number of years in service in the Group
of the employees who cancel their employment..

Invalidity

Due to unavailable data from relevant institutions for the rate of retirement due to invalidity, the
model is created on a manner that the Group will pay retirement benefits only for a regular pension,
i,e,, the assumption used is that the retirement due to invalidity is zero, From the actuarial practice
the rates that are used for invalidity because of accident are less than 0,01%, so including this
assumption would not change the result materially.

Tax on personal income

For lump sum payments on retirement, a tax rate of 10% is applied only on 4 bases for the lump
sum payments because the tax on personal income according to the Law, is not paid on the lump
sum payment at retirement which is equal to the amount of two average monthly net salaries per
employee in the Republic of Nort Macedonia in the last three months, For scholarships, a tax rate
of 0% was used.

Gold prices

For the model in 2023 again an average increase of 6% has been used. Also, this rate is applied on
the same base price of 22,184 denars, consistently with the previous period.

Rate of enrolling in primary i.e., secondary school, undergraduate studies, and graduate studies
All the children of the employees who will die will enrol in primary i,e,, secondary school, if they
fulfil the respective age constraints, 74% of the employees’ children (including the employees who
will die) will enrol in undergraduate studies if they fulfil the respective age constraints, 16% of the
employees’ children will enrol in graduate studies if they fulfil the respective age constraints, For
these models, an assumption has been used that the future monthly instalments for all type of
scholarships will be 13,649 denars (including the personal tax).

The used financial assumptions were as follows:

Nominal annual increase of the average republic salary: 4.5%.

The calculation was based on the data for the average monthly net salaries for the period from
January 2009 to September 2023. To estimate the absolute monthly salary amounts for a certain
year, the percentage was applied to the base calculated as the average of the monthly net salaries
paid per worker in North Macedonia in the last twelve available months.

Discount rate: 6.2%.

The discount rate is derived from the yields on the government bonds issued in Nort Macedonia in
2023 and classified by maturity. The average maturity of the Group’s obligations for all types of
benefit is 20 years, so the discount rate that is used in the model is calculated for this maturity from
the previously obtained discount rate curve.
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16. Trade and other payables

2023 2022

MKD 000 MKD 000

Trade creditors 856,927 712,374
Customer prepayments 33,013 40,535
Other current liabilities 44 470 52,658
Tangible assets creditors 11,404 25,870
945,814 831,437

Other current liabilities relate to liability for net payroll, payroll taxes and social securities,
liabilities to employees from salaries, accrual for calculated obligation for concession fee and other
sundry creditors.

17. Short term borrowings

2023 2022

MKD 000 MKD’ 000

Loan payable - MILLKO Dooel Skopje 61,500 61,500
Interest expense payable - MILLKO Dooel Skopje 3,720 382
Loan payable - TGF TLC - 276,719
Interest expense payable - TGF TLC - 5,029
65,220 343,630

On 03 November 2022, a short-term Loan Agreement has been concluded between Millko Dooel
Skopje and Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje ("the Borrower"). Millko Dooel Skopje provided the
borrower with a loan in the amount of 61,000 thousand denars. The borrower is using the borrowed
money for corporate purposes. On 31 May 2023 it has been Annexed and will be repaid no later
than May 10, 2024, together with the interest. The interest on the loan is calculated at the rate of
2% above 3-month Euribor as a reference interest rate.

On December 31, 2022, the amount of the loan with Titan Global Finance TLC (TGF), which is an
unsecured term loan in euros with a total principal not exceeding 7,000 thousand euros, was 4,500
thousand euros. On January 5, 2023, the Group withdraws 1,500 thousand euros from the loan.
Whereas, as of April 6, 2023, it was returned in full. ‘
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18. Contingences and Commitments

Contingent liabilities
2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000
Bank guarantees 97,914 95,960
97,914 95,960

As of 31 December 2023, the Group has obtained a Bank payment guaranties from:

Halk Banka in favour of Makpetrol Prom Gas of MKD 10,000 thousand valid till 31 January
2024 and 12,000 thousand valid till 31 January 2025 related to the purchase of natural gas, in
favour of Customs of MKD 15,000 thousand valid till 15 December 2025, MKD 15,000
thousand valid till 2 November 2025 and MKD 24,100 thousand valid till 01 January 2025 plus
MKD 8,200 thousand valid till 2 July 2025 for excise, in favour of MEPSO AD Macedonia of
MKD 3,967 thousand for transmission of electricity valid till 31 January 2024, in favour of ECM
ECO Monitoring of MKD 1,135 thousand for acquisition of equipment valid till 1 April 2024
and in favour of AD Elektrani N. Macedonia of MKD 8,650 thousand for transmission of
electricity valid till 15 February 2024.

Sparkasse Banka in favour of Ministry of Economy of MKD 997 thousand related to three
concessions, two concession in amount of MKD 680 valid till 26 December 2027 and one in
amount of MKD 317 valid till 5 June 2028.

Commitments

Operating lease commitments - group as lessee

The Group leases motor vehicles under lease agreements. The leases have varying terms and

clauses. The expenditures are recognised in the profit or loss for the period.

2023 2022

MKD’000 MKD’000

Up to 1 year 5,443 4,940
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 8,337 6,459
13,780 11,399

In 2023 the Group leases 3 terminals (Ohrid, Strumica and Orovnik) under lease agreements. The

leases have varying terms and clauses.

2023 2022

MKD’ 000 MKD’000

Upto 1 year 1,233 1,233
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 1,850 3,083
3,083 4,316
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18. Contingences and Commitments (continued)
Commitments (continued)

The Group leased Horizontal Mill from MILLKO under lease agreement.

2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’ 000
Upto 1 year 16,113 16,113
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 16,113 32,226
32,226 48,339

The Company leased forklifts under lease agreement.
2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000
Up to 1 year 19,573 2,392
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 25,096 8,171
44,669 10,563

Legal proceedings

From time to time and in the normal course of the business, claims against the Group may be
received. On the basis of its own estimates and both internal and external professional advice, the
management of the Group is of the opinion that no material losses will be incurred in respect of

claims and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.
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19. Related party transactions
Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. owns 95% of the Group’s share capital.
The following transactions were carried out with the related parties:

a) Sales of goods and services

Ultimate Parent:
Titan Cement Company - services

Entities under common control:
Cement Plus Ltd - cement
Cement Plus Ltd - freight revenue
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - pet coke
SHARRCEM SH.P.K — cement and sharmal
SHARRCEM SH.P.K -clinker
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - freight
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - materials
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - fixed assets and services
SHARRCEM SH.P.X - pozzolana
SHARRCEM SH.P.X - freight
Titan Cementara Kosjeric clinker
Titan Cementara Kosjeric - freight
Titan Cementara Kosjeric - lignit
Titan Cementara Kosjeric - services
Antea Cement SHA - services
Antea Cement SHA - clinker
MWJUIKO - ITIM Hooen Crkorije - rent
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - other services
Titan Zlatna Panega - services
Beni Suef Cement Egypt - services

Outstanding balances arising from the transactions mentioned above are presente

Receivables from related parties

Ultimate Parent:
Titan Cement Company - services

Entities under common control:
SHARRCEM SH,P,K - clinker
SHARRCEM SH,PK - pet coke
SHARRCEM SH,P,K - cement and sharmal
SHARRCEM SH,PK - other
SHARRCEM SH,PK - pozzolana
SHARRCEM SH,PK - fixed assets
Titan Cementara Kosjeric - clinker and services
Antea Cement SHA - clinker
Antea Cement SHA - services
MHAUJVIKO - IIIIM ooen Cromje - rent
Zlatna Panega Cement - services
Beni Suef Cement Egypt - services

2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000
2,991 4,737

- 425,341

- 34,127

215,612 298,380
1,542,685 264,185
276,538 189,990
17,975 60,284
38,544 61,753
3,668 1,411
31,281 21,604
45,088 -
36,119 -
10,912 -

- 164

1,854 518
6,751 3,905

- 35,805

2,532 2,534
3,437 -
1,854 518
4,699 2,791
2,242,540 1,408,047

d below:

2023 2022
MKD’ 000 MKD 000
2,991 1,297
35,950 50,682
24,126 42,855
103,486 52,011
2,409 19,661
3,327 15,823
1,815 -
9,961 518

- 35,693

6,751 5,546
6,793 249

335 518

7,490 2,791
205,434 227,644
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19. Related party transactions (continued)

b) Purchases of goods and services

2023 2022
MKD 000 MKD’000
Ultimate Parent:
Titan Cement Company - white cement, pet coke and
clinker 105,785 153,566
Titan Cement Company - management support 124,374 107,655
Titan Cement Company - other 7,444 14,126
Entities under common control:
Cement Plus Ltd - sales support fee - 47,773
SHARRCEM SH,PK - other 13,443 9,205
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - services 16,113 16,118
Titan Zlatna Panega - grey cement, clinker and other 105 22,354
Adocim Cement - clinker 160 131,193
Tithys Holding Limited - derivative financial instrument 31,384 -
Titan Global Finance - interest 3,687 9,090
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - interest 3,337 382
305,832 511,462
Outstanding balances arising from the transactions mentioned above are presented below:
Payables to related parties
2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000
Ultimate Parent:
Titan Cement Company - management support 35,300 96,802
Titan Cement Company - CAPEX 7,444 1,451
Titan Cement Company - WC, pet coke and services 54,550 88,418
Entities under common control:
Cement Plus Ltd, - sales support fee - 32,663
Cement Plus Ltd, - prepayments - 3,802
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - services 47,338 28,825
SHARR CEM SH,P K - other 1,230 3,529
Titan Zlatna Panega - grey cement, clinker - 19,023
145.862 274,513

The Group enter into these transactions with the above related parties at mutually agreed terms.
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19. Related party transactions (continued)

Other transactions
2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - loan principal 61,500 61,500
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - interest 3,720 382
Titan Global Finance - loan principal - 276,719
Titan Global Finance - interest - 5,029
65,220 343,630
Key management compensation
2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD’000
Salaries and other short-term benefits 123,908 117,125
123,908 117,125

Key management consists of Executive and extended Management Board of the Company.

Key management compensation in amount of MKD 123,908 thousand refers to salaries and other
short-term benefits of managers and other members of the key personnel of the Group for 2023.
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20. Expenses by nature

2023 2022
MKD’000 MKD 000
Row materials and other materials 1,896,407 1,813,050
Utilities 623,746 1,478,726
Cost of traded goods and services 299,506 557,242
Other material costs and services 445,523 413,295
Employees benefit expense 330,299 303,999
Distribution expenses 205,149 240,559
Depreciation 244,003 212,224
Maintenance 106,641 154,656
Technical support and know-how services 124,374 107,655
IT & Telecoms 18,442 21,489
Promotion and advertisement 31,887 28,913
Travelling 15,463 13,886
Third party fees 3,692 3,415
Inventory change (33,849) (240,911)
Other expenses 49,557 52,314
Total cost of goods sold, selling and marketing and
administrative expenses 4,360,840 5,160,511

21. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables and other payables and short
term borrowings. The Group has various financial assets such as trade receivables, cash and
deposits, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are liquidity risk, foreign currency
risk and credit risk. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
which are summarised below.

a) Market risk

Market risk is defined as the ‘risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices’ and includes interest rate risk, currency risk
and other price risk. The majority of the revenues of the Group are generated on domestic market
and the remaining part mainly generated on foreign market. Expenses of the Group that arise are
mainly arising from purchases on domestic and foreign markets.

Management believes that is taking all the necessary measures to support the sustainability and
growth of the Group’s business in the current circumstances. Nevertheless, future market
fluctuations cannot be predicted with accuracy.

b) Interest risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

Change in the interest rates and interest margins may influence financing costs and returns on
financial investments.
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21. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

b) Interest risk (continued)

Changes in market interest rates affect the interest costs on short term borrowings. As of 31
December 2023, the Company has short term borrowings of MKD 65,220 thousands (2022: MKD
343,630 thousands), therefore 1% rise in market interest rate would have caused (ceteris paribus)
the interest paid to increase with approximately 652 thousands annually for 2023 (2022: MKD
3,436 thousands), while similar decrease would have caused the same decrease in interest paid.

¢) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal due to the fact that the majority of foreign
currency transactions relating to selling and purchases are denominated in EURO, which was stable
during all 2023. The exception is purchases of pet coke that are denominated in USD and from
which exchange rate differences arise. Also, domestic sales agreements are denominated in EURO.

For purposes of sensitivity analyses from foreign currency risk, Management used the assumption
of 1% increase of Foreign exchange rate of EUR which is considered reasonable having in mind
stable local currency against EUR during the past years. As of the 31* December 2023, if EUR
would have been 1% (2022: 1%) weaker or stronger against MKD, profit would have been MKD
5,622 thousand (2022: MKD 870 thousand) after tax in net balance higher or lower, respectively.
The Group’s outstanding balances are as follows:

2023 Total Domestic Foreign
MKD

equivalent

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,054,162 503,086 551,076

Trade receivables and other current financial

assets 391,662 192,982 198,680

Total assets 1,445,824 696,068 749,756

Liabilities

Trade payables 856,927 672,487 184,440

Other payables and current liabilities 55,876 52,711 3,165

Short term borrowings 65,220 65,220 -

Total liabilities 978,023 790,418 187,605

Net balance sheet exposure 467,801 (94,350) 562,151
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21. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

¢) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

2022 Total Domestic Foreign
MKD

equivalent

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 158,091 112,766 45,325

Trade receivables and other current financial

assets 444930 197,610 247,320

Total assets 603,021 310,376 292,645

Liabilities

Trade payables 712,374 355,503 356,871

Other payables and current liabilities 78,528 46,387 32,141

Kpatkopounu 3aemu 343,630 61,882 281,748

Total liabilities 1,134,532 463,772 670,760

Net balance sheet exposure (531,511) (153,396) (378,115)

Prepayments are excluded from the tables above because they are not financial assets and liabilities.

d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The table below summarises
the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022
based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Period ended 31 December 2023

On Less than 3to12 1to5 > 5years Total
demand 3 months months years
Trade payables - 711,065 - - - 711,065
Other payables - 55,876 - - - 55,876
Payables to related
parties - 145,862 - - - 145,862
Short term borrowings - - 65,220 - - 65,220
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21. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Period ended 31 December 2022

On Less than 3to 12 1to5 > 5years Total
demand 3 months months years
Trade payables - 437,861 - - - 437,861
Other payables - 78,528 - - - 78,528
Payables to related
parties - 274,513 - - - 274,513
Short term borrowings - - 343,630 - - 343,630

e) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group has
policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one customer. In addition, to reduce this
risk the Group has required as collateral bank guaranties and deposits. Recognisable risks are
accounted for by adequate provisions on receivables. As at 31 December 2023, there are no
outstanding doubtful significant credit risks which are not already covered by a provision for
doubtful receivables.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash
and cash equivalents and short term borrowing receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these instruments. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's cash and cash equivalents were held at
short term deposits and current accounts in highly rated financial institutions.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, following shareholders’
approval. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the periods ended
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The Group monitors its equity capital using earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) for the year.

2023 2022
MKD 000 MKD 000
EBITDA 1,928,153 1,371,307
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21. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Capital management (continue)

The gearing ratio was as follows:

2023 2022

MKD’000 MKD 000

Net debt 107,602 1,096,648
Total equity 5,249,797 4,442,122
Net debt to equity ratio 0.02 0.25

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The structure and
management of debt capital is determined at TITAN Group level. Considering the level of Group’s
current assets and the constant support from the Group, Management believes that it has sufficient
buffer to mitigate any potential impact from macroeconomic uncertainties.

22. Events after the reporting period

The Group from 01% of January 2024 has a Statutory amendment - accession.

In accordance with the Agreement for accession composed in a form of notarial deed, the
companies subject to accession to Cementarnica USJE, ceased to carry out their business activities
as of December 31st 2023, and as of January Olst 2024 the bookkeeping is recorded only by the
acquiring company i.e. Cementarnica USJE.

Therefore, after the registration of amendment with the Trade Registry of RNM, the Trade
company 1D KOMPANI DOOEL s. Cheshinovo, Cheshinovo-Obleshevo and Company for non-
metals OPALIT DOOEL s. Cheshinovo, Cheshinovo-Obleshevo as companies subject to
accession, ceased to exist as legal entities, without conducting liquidation, while all assets and
liabilities were transferred to Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje, as an acquiring company.

The accession procedure was conducted in a manner that a universal transfer of all assets, property,
rights and obligations of the companies subject to accession was carried out, without conducting
liquidation thereof.

In 2020, Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje acquired 100% of the shares in Trade company ID
KOMPANI DOOEL, thus acquiring OPALIT DOOEL as well, as it was fully owned by the former.

The accession procedure was carried out aiming to increase the efficiency of operations from an
economic aspect, concentration of capital, technology, professional staff and employees, increase
of market competitiveness, reducing costs, ensuring continuity in activities performance, as well
as more favourable conditions for new investments and development.

After the full transfer of the assets, liabilities and capital of the companies subject of accession,
Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje is their legal successor.
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MoaHecysarbe MoanwHu CMeTkn npeky Be6 - LieHTpaneH Peructap Ha Peny6nuka Cesepra MakeaoHuja

EMBC: 04053397
LienocHo ume: LementapHuua YCJE Al Ckonje
Bug Ha paGota: 450

Tun Ha roguwHa cvmeTtka: KoHconuaupaHa pesuanpaHa rogulHa cmeTka

Tun Ha AOKYMEHT: KOHCOJ'IVI,IJ.I/IpaHa roguwHa cMmeTKa

loguha : 2023

JNncra Ha NpUKavHeHW JOKYMEHTW!

Ob6jacHyBauku BeneLuxu v gpyru npunosu
DUHAHCUCKN n3BELLITan

BunaHc Ha cocToj6a
UcnpaBka
Heto 2a BpyTo 3a ia
ogHa
gé':.laxa 3@ Onuc TeKOBHa TeKoBHa ::e,qnoc'ra POTJ:aAH
roguHa roguHa N EEa
rognHa

- - AKTUBA: A HETEKOBHW CPELCTBA
1 (002+009+020+021+031) 3.420.212.818,00 3.106.807.247,00

- - LHEMATEPWUJATNTHU CPECTBA
2 (003+004+005+006+007+008) 36.925.354,00 36.316.366,00

- - KoHuecun, naTeHTy, NULUEHLM, 3aLLTUTHM
4 3HALY M CIIMYHY NpaBa 34.457.566,00 33.848.578,00
5 - -Typeun 2.467.788,00 2.467.788,00

- - 1l. MATEPUJANHN CPEACTBA
9 (010+013+014+015+016+017+018+019) 3.114.228.045,00 2.794.318.462,00
10 - - HepukHocTn (0114012) 1.439.416.612,00 1.444.518.742,00
11 - - 3emjuwite 839.719.637,00 853.441.936,00
12 - - pagexHu oGjektn 599.696.975,00 591.076.806,00
13 - - NocTpojkn u onpema 1.199.480.489,00 1.073.942.384,00
14 - - TpaHcnopTHY cpeacTea 296.458,00

- - Anat, NOroHCcKU 1 KaHLenapucku
15 WHBEHTAP 1 MeBen 16.623.901,00 17.689.361,00
18 - - MaTtepujanHu cpeacTsa Bo NoaroToska 448.179.592,00 246.905.022,00
19 - - OcTaHaTy MaTepujanHu cpencrea 10.527.451,00 10.966.495,00
20 - - llIl. BNOXXYBAHA BO HEABVXKHOCTU 269.059.419,00 276.172.419,00

--b5. TEKOBHU CPEACTBA '
36 (037+045+052+059) 2.944.972.032,00 2.582.990.390,00
37 - - . BAJTINXI (038+039+040+041+042+043) | 1.415.464.699,00 1.775.741.347,00
38 - - 3anuxu Ha CypoBMHU U MaTepujani 972.292.027,00 1.032.047.760,00

- - 3anuxu Ha pe3epBHM AENOBU, CUTEH
39 WHBEHTap, amBanaxa i asTorymu 69.179.350,00 397.790.161,00

- - 3anuxu Ha HeAOBPLUIEHN NPOU3BOAMN U
40 nonynpowasoau 244.,988.257,00 190.726.350,00
41 - - 3anuxu Ha roToBy NPOU3BOAN 128.678.426,00 154.782.074,00
42 - - 3anuxun Ha TProBCKU CTOKK 326.639,00 395.002,00

- - ILCPECTBA (MNIN TPYNK 3A
44 OTYI'YBAHE HAMEHETU 3A MPOJIAXKEBA 11,580.000,00

W NMPEKNHATWN PABOTEHA)

- - lIl. KPATKOPOUYHU MOBAPYBAHA
45 (046+047+048+049+050+051) 474.333.519,00 648.463.700,00
46 - - MoGapyeara oA nospzaHu ApyLITBA 205.388.859,00 227.646.789,00
47 - - MoGapysarsa og, Kynyeaun 177.152.485,00 208.684.259,00

https://e-submit.crm.com.mklaaoI/Admin/GenerateAAPreview.aspx?aaid=EAIkv2U3NweOnV8T9py6Ag%3d%3d&uid=SvB|HszPCBinvs3yiTS... 1/8



4/4/24, 12:40 PM

MogHecyBame Moaumunn CMeTkn npexy Beb - LieHTpaneH Peructap Ha Peny6nvka Cesepra MakeaoHuja

48 - - No6apyeak-a 3a AafneHn aBaHCK Ha 20.125.916,00 116.175.634,00
pobasysayn
- - MoBapyeawa oa ApKasaTa No OCHOB Ha
49 JaHoun, NPUAOHECH, LapyHa, aKUW3K 1 3a 68.566.652,00 92.279.934,00
oCTaHaT AaBaqkii KOH ApXaBaTta
(npetnnatu)
50 - - Mo6apyeatsa og BpaboTeHuTe 203.629,00 766.305,00
51 - - QOcraHaTtu kpaTkopoyHU nobapyeara 2.895.978,00 2.910.779,00
- - IV. KPATKOPOYHUN PNHAHCUCKU 694.868.00
52 CPE[CTBA (053+056+057+058) 1.011.445,00 '
57 - - MoBapysatea Mo faaeHn 3aemu 15.000,00 15.000,00
58 - - OcTaHaTit KpaTKOPO4HMN (hUHAHCUCKU 996.445,00 679.868,00
cpeacTea
--V. MAPUYHW CPEACTBA N NAPUYHU
59 EKBUBANEHTU (060+061) 1.054.162.369,00 158.090.475,00
60 - - Napwu4Hm cpepcTea 1.054.162.369,00 158.090.475,00
- - VI. MNTATEHU TPOLUOUW 3A WOHUTE
62 NEPUOON N NPECMETAHU NMPUXOON 34.796.127,00 7.063.012,00
(ABP)
- - BKYMHA AKTUBA: CPEACTBA
63 (001+035+036+044+062) 6.411.560.977,00 5.696.860.649,00
64 B BOHBUNAHCHA EBUAEHLIMIA - 159 404 54 097,00 25.436.796.542,00
AKTUBA
--TMACUBA : A. TNMABHUHA 1t PE3EPBU
65 (066+067-068-069+070+071+075-076+077- | 5.249.795.723,00 4.442.121.322,00
078)
66 --1. OCHOBHA IMABHWHA 1.747.729.749,00 1.747.729.749,00
-- V. PEBANIOPU3ALINCKA PE3EPBA 1A
PASNVKN O BPEOAHYBAHE HA
70 KOMMOHEHTY HA OCTAHATA 148.167.651,00 147.345.451,00
CEON®ATHA JOBUBKA
71 - - VI. PE3EPBM (072+073+074) 1.825.037.136,00 1.513.401.793,00
72 - - 3aKOHCKU pesepBu 174.702.800,00 174.702.253,00
74 - - OctaHaTn pesepeu 1.650.334.336,00 1.338.699.540,00
75 - - VII. AKYMYINUPAHA JOBUBKA 4.312.501,00 3.494.330,00
77 - - IX. BOBNBKA 3A JENOBHATA FOAWMHA | 1.524.548.686,00 1.030.149.999,00
81 - - b. OBBPCKU (082+085+095) 1.075.780.941,00 1.241.580.992,00
--1. AONMOPO4YHI PE3EPBUPAHSA 3A
82 PU3NLIM U TPOLLIOLIW (083+084) 70.430.814,00 61.696.639,00
- - PesepBupatba 3a NEH3UU, OTNPEMHUHN 1
83 CIUYHY OBBPCKM KOH BpaBOTEHHUTE 55.273.102,00 54.054.871,00
- - OcTaHaTV JONTOPOYHY pesepeupaba 3a
84 PU3MLMA M TpOLLOLM 15.157.712,00 7.641.768,00
o5 | 63’- KPATKOPOHHY OBBPCKM (0n 096 Ao | 1 445 350,127,00 1.179.884.353,00
96 - - OBBpcKu cnpema NOBp3aHW ApyiuTea 142.527.832,00 275.157.649,00
97 - - OBspcku cnpema pobasysaun 634.506.870,00 459.631.508,00
98 - - O6BpCKU 33 aBaHCK, AENO3UTY 1 KayLN 44.474.740,00 36.732.212,00
- - OBBpCKM 3a AAHOLUM U NPULOHECH Ha
99 nnara u Ha HaaoMeCTN Ha NnaTu 890.727,00 4.680.289,00
100 - - OBepcku koH BpaboTeHuTe 10.183.671,00 9.708.160,00
101 - - TeKOBHY faHOo4HW 0BBPCKM 75.234.029,00 16.380.498,00
- - KpatkopouHu pesepeupatba 3a pusuum u
102 TpoLwoLm 13.481.817,00 9.407.809,00
- - ObBpcKM No 3aeMU U KpeguTn cnpema
103 NoBpsahN ApyWTEa 65.219.916,00 343.630.665,00
104 - - O6BpcCKM 110 3aeMU1 1 KpeauTun 700,00
- - O6BpCKM NO OCHOB Ha Y4eCcTBO BO
106 pesynTaTor 550.423,00 229.627,00
107 - - OctaHaTu huHaHcucKkn 06BPCKM 9.392.287,00
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108 - - OcTaHaTn KpaTkoposHu 0BBpCKM 18.280.102,00 14.932.949,00
- - V. OJIOXKEHO MNAKAHE HA
109 TPOLWOWM U NIPUXOAW BO WOHUTE 85.984.313,00 13.158.335,00
NEPUOON (NBP)
- - BKYNHO MACWBA : TRABHUHA,
111 PE3EPBW V1 OEBPCKU 6.411.560.977,00 5.696.860.649,00
(065+081+094+109+110)
112 ;B BOHBUNAHCHA EBUAEHLNIA- 159 490.542.097,00 25.436.796.542,00
NACUBA
BunaHc Ha ycnex
BpyTto
Osnaka o _II:I:J:BT_; 3a BpenHocTa|lpeTxoaHa
;aon nuc app— TeKOBHa roguHa
A roamHa
201 --I|. NPUXOAWN O PABOTEHETO (202+203+206) 6.562.327.993,00 6.762.770.209,00
202 - - MNpuxogu oa npogaxba 6.279.877.531,00 6.511.346.390,00
203 - - OcraHaTu npuxoam 81.568.996,00 76.426.006,00
204 - 3anuxu Ha rotoBM NPOU3BOAW U HELOBPLUEHO 345.508.424,00 109.010.062,00
NPOM3BOACTBO HA MOYETOKOT Ha roguHaTa
- - 3anMxun Ha roToBW NPOW3BOAMN U HEAOBPLUEHO
205 MPOM3BOACTEO Ha KPAJOT Ha roUHaTa 379.356.941,00 349.921.006,00
206 - - KanutanusupaHo concTaeHo nNpou3soAcTBo U ycnyrv | 200.881.466,00 174.997.813,00
- - Il. PACXOAU O PABOTEHETO
207 (208+200+210+211+2124213+218+219+220+2214222) 4.913.639.922,00 5.847.038.235,00
208 - - Tpoloum 3a CYpPOBUHW W Apyrv matepujany 2.688.518.804,00 3.459.061.845,00
209 - - Ha6aBHa BpegHOCT Ha NPoAaAeHUTE CTOKM 283.416.624,00 541.123.528,00
- - HaBaBHa BpeaHOCT Ha NpofaaeHUTe Matepujanu,
210 pesepBHU AENOBYM, CUTEH MHBEHTapP, ambanaxa n 41.236.725,00 61.979.421,00
aBTorymm
211 - - Ycnyru co kapakTep Ha martepujanHy TpoLuouy 848.821.788,00 890.894.721,00
212 - - OcraHaTtu Tpowouy of paBoTer-eTo 149.669.447,00 161.209.041,00
213 - - Tpowouu 3a BpaboTeHu (214+215+216+217) 361.420.431,00 334.391.530,00
214  --TInati 1 HapoMecToUM Ha nnata (HeTo) 191.037.346,00 178.938.410,00
215 ;;;’f:moum 3a AaHOLM Ha NnaTy 1 HAAOMECTOLM Ha 18.395.085,00 17.119.824,00
- - MpyAocHecy of 3a40MKUTENHO COLMjanHo
216 oCHrypyBalLe 80.797.322,00 75.819.871,00
217 - - OcraHaTu Tpowloum 3a BpaGoTenuTe 71.190.678,00 62.513.425,00
- - AMOpTU3aUuja Ha MaTepujanHuTe u
218 HeMaTepUjaNHUTE CPEACTEA 244.244.734,00 211.909.336,00
- - BpeaHocHo ycornacysarbe (06e3BpeaHyBat-e) Ha
219 HETeKoBHM CpeacTBa 13.059.000,00 1.135.000,00
- - BpeaHocHo ycornacysatbe (06e3BpegHyBare) Ha
220 TeKOBHUTE CpencTea 43.045.230,00 8.329.075,00
221 -- Pesepeupatba 3a TPOLUIOLM U PUULIN 28.479.260,00 20.286.688,00
222 - - OcraHaTy pacxogu of paGoTereTo 211.727.879,00 156.718.050,00
- - lIl. ®UHAHCUCKIU NPUXO4U
223 (224+229+230+231+232+233) 7.658.957,00 10.014.144,00
- - ®YHaAHCUCKW NMPYXOAM Of OAHOCH CO NOBP3aHU
224 PYWITEA (225+226+2274228) 2.585.939,00 4.827.497,00
- - [puxoan No OCHOB Ha KYpPCHM pasnuku of paboTere
227 CO NOBP3aHY ApYLLTBA 2.585.939,00 4.827.497,00
- - MNpuxoan no ocHoB Ha kamaTk o paGoTere co
230 HEeNoBP3aHN ApyLLITEa 272.264,00 1.321.340,00
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231 - Mpuxoan No 0CHOB Ha KypCHU pasnuky of paboTere 4.800.754,00 3.865.307,00
CO HENoBP3aHy APYLITBa :
- - IV. ®IHAHCUCKWN PACXOaN 49.851.940,00
234 (235+239+240+241+4242+243) 26.941.946,00 '
- - DUHAHCUCKU PACXOAU Of, OAHOCK CO NOBP3aHU 7.905.969 00
235 oywrea (236+237+238) 3-356.124,00 '
236 - Pacxonu no ocHoB Ha kamaTu of, paboTere co 253.829,00
noBp3aHu ApyLITBa
237 - Pacxoau no oCHOB Ha KypcHM pas3nuku of, pabotere 3.102.295,00 7.905.969,00
CO NoBp3aHu ApyLITBA
239 - Pacxoau no ocHOB Ha kamaTu of, paboTere co 18.900.790,00 13.076.552,00
HenoBp3aHu APYLUTBA
240 - Pacxoau no ocHOB Ha KypCHM pasnuku of patotewse 4.685.032,00 28.869.419,00
CO HeMoBP3aHW 4pyLUTBa
- - fo6ueka o penosHoTo paboTerse (201+223+244)-
246 (204-205+207+234+245) 1.663.253.599,00 1.116.805.122,00
250 é‘-‘gsoﬁmska npep ogaHovyBamwe (246+248) nnu (246- 1.663.253.599,00 1.116.805.122,00
252 - -[laHok Ha pobuska 138.704.913,00 76.033.205,00
- - HETO IOBUBKA 3A IENOBHATA FOONHA (250-
255 252+253-254) 1.524.548.686,00 1.040.771.917,00
- - [poceveH 6poj Ha BpaBGOTEHM BP3 OCHOBA Ha YacoBuU
257 na paboTa BO NpecMETKOBHMOT Nepuog, (Bo anconyTeH 236,00 241,00
U3HOoC)
258 - - bpoj Ha Meceum Ha paboTetse (BO anconyTeH U3HOC) 12,00 12,00
259 --[OBUBKA/3AT'YEA 3A NEPNOCA 1.524.548.686,00 1.040.771.917,00
- - [lobueka Koja UM npunara Ha UMaTenUTe Ha akumm
260 o matmaroTo APYLLITBO 1.524.548.686,00 1.040.771.917,00
264 - - 3APABOTYBAYKA MO AKLUJA 2.677,00 1.826,00
265 - - Bkynna ocHosHa 3apaboTyBauka no akuuja 2.677,00 1.826,00
269 --[JoGueka sa roguHara 1.524.548.686,00 1.040.771.917,00
- - OcTtaHaTta ceondatHa aobuska
271  (273+275+277+279+281+283) - 44.000,00
(274+276+278+280+282+284)
- - NoBunBku kon Npousneryeaar og Npeseaysare of,
273 cTpaHcko paboTere 44.000,00
286 - - Heto octaHaTa ceondbatHa fobueka (271-285) 44.000,00
- - BkynHa ceondpaTtHa no6ueka 3a roguHara (269+286)
288 wnu (286-270) 1.524.548.686,00 1.040.815.917,00
- - CeondbatHa gobmBka koja MM npunara Ha umaTenuTte
289 Ha KLU Ha MATMIHOTO ZIYLLITBO 1.524.548.686,00 1.040.815.917,00
OpxaBHa eBuaeHuuja
WcnpaBka
Heto 3a Bpyro3a |Ha
O3Haka 3a
AON Onuc TeKOBHa TeKOBHa BpeAHocTa pope:::AHa
roguvHa roguHa 3a TeKOBHa A
roguHa
609 - - 3emjuwita 839.719.637,00 853.441.936,00
- - CeraluHa BpeiHOCT Ha rpaaexHu o6jekTn
612 o Bucokorpaaba kou ce KopucTar 3a 539.068.594,00 530.061.972,00
BpLUEH-E fAejHocT (< um = AOI 012 og BC)
- - CeralHa BpeaHocCT Ha objekT og,
613 HiCKorpaasa (< wnu = AOT 012 on BC) 60.628.381,00 61.014.834,00
- - CeratuHa BpeAHOCT Ha MHGopMaLmcka
614 onpema u TenekoMyHuKaLucka onpema (< 1.193.819,00 1.379.349,00
unu = AOIN 013 oa BC)
- - CerawHa BpegHOCT Ha KoMMjyTepcka
615 onpema (< unw = AOT 013 og EC) 11.602.460,00 13.621.522,00
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625

- - 3aemu U KpeoMTN AafEHN Ha
HedUHaHCKCKU TProBCKV 4pyLUTBa BO
npvBaTHa 1 Ap>KaBHa CONCTBEHOCT U jaBHU
npenpujatuja Bo semjata(< unn =AOI
024+A0IM 025+A00M 032+A0IM 033+A0MN
034+A0T0M 046+A0I1 047+A0[ 056+A0IN
057+A0I1 058 O BC)

12.654.778,00

350.100,00

626

- - NoBapyBatba No ocHos Ha Npoaax6a Ha
CTOKW U YCIYTW W aBaHCK faAEHN Ha
HedUHaHCKCKy TPTOBCKW APYLUITBa BO
npuBaTHa U ApP>XaBHa COMNCTBEHOCT U jaBHW
npenpujatuja 8o 3emjata (< unu=AO0Tll
006+A0MN 017+AO0I 030+ AOI 046+ AOM
047+A0I1 048 Of1 BC)

197.236.993,00

258.170.588,00

628

- - OcraHati nobapyBata o4 He(UHaHCUCKN
TProBCKW APYLLTBA BO NPpUBATHA U OPXXaBHA
COINCTBEHOCT U jaBHU Npenpujatuja Bo
semjara (< unn=A0Tl1 034+ AOM 046+ AOI
047+A00N 051+ AOI 062 O[] BC)

3.040.915,00

3.060.053,00

629

- - Octanatu nobapysara o4 OpraHu Ha
3aKOHOAABHA, U3BPLUHA U CyACKa BNacT,
OMNOCM, 930PCM,ABPCM, eguHuLM Ha
nokanHa camoynpaga 1 Apyrv npaBHM nuua
uHaHcupaHu of ByyeT (< nnu= AOI
034+A0MN 035+A0I0 047+A0MN 049+A0IN
051+A0N 062 O BC)

68.566.652,00

92.279.934,00

630

- - NMoGapyeara no ocHOB Ha npogaxba Ha
CTOKM 1 YCNYTU 1 aBaHCW 1 ocTaHaTy
nobapyearsa of cute cybjekTu BO 3eMjaTa u
cTpaHcTeo (< nn=AO0IM 006+A0N 017+A0MN
030+AO0IT 034+AO0I1 035+ AOI 046+ AOT
047+A0M 049+ AOIT 050+A0IMN 051+A0MN
057+A00N 062 O BC)

489.018.730,00

539.353.442,00

631

- - OCHOBHa MaBHUHA (CONCTBEHUYKM
KanuTan) BO YAENW NoceayBaHu of Apyru
TProsCk\ ApYyLUTBa BO NPUBaATHa U gpXKaBHa
COMCTBEHOCT U jaBHU npenpujaTtuja Bo
3emjara (< unu =A0MN 065 og BC)

4.743.000,00

4.743.000,00

632

- - OCcHOBHa MaBHUHA (CONCTBEHUYKN
KanwTan) Bo yaenu nocegyBaHu of GUNYKu
nuua, TProBuy NOeANHUN, 3aHaETYMH,
3emjogenuu, CamoCTOjHU BPLUUTENN Ha
OeJHOCT 1 HenpodUTHM opraHusauum
peructpupadm Bo 3emjata (< unu =AOIl 065
oa BC)

82.624.300,00

82.624.300,00

634

- - O6BpCKM MO 3aeMY U KPESUTIN 38MEHN 0f, -
HEPUHAHCUCKU TPrOBCKW SpYLUTBA BO
npuBaTHa 1 ApXasHa CONCTBEHOCT U jaBHW
npenpujatuja Bo 3emjata(< unu =AO[l .
086+AO0I1 087+A0IM 088+A0IM 089+A0IN
090+A0T0 096+A0I 104+A0IM 107 O, BC)

700,00

635

- - ObBpcky No ocHOB Ha HabaBKa Ha CTOKU U
YCnyrn 1 aBaHcK (KpaTKOPOUHM TPrOBCKY
KpeauTh) NpumeHm o, HethHaHCUCKM
TProBCKW ApYLUTBA BO NPUBATHA U ApPXaBHA
CONCTBEHOCT U jaBHW npenpujaTuja Bo
semjata(< unun =AOI 096+A0I 097+ AOM
098+A0TM 108 O BC)

469.422.470,00

390.831.894,00

637

- - OcraHaTn 06BpPCKL KOH HEUHAHCUCKN
TProBCKW APYLUTBA BO MPWBATHA U ApXaBHa
COMNCTBEHOCT U jaBHU npenpujaTtuja Bo
3emjara (< unu=AO0I 092+A0IM 093+A0MN
096+ AOM 106+ AOI 107+A0fMT 108+ AOT
109 01 BC)

97.990.638,00

23.267.033,00

638

- - OcraHaTy 06BpCKM KOH OpraHu Ha
3aKoHOAAaBHa, U3BPLUHA U CYLACKa BMACT,
OMNUNOCM,®30PCM,ABPCM, eanHmum Ha
NokanHa camoynpasa 1 Apyrv NpaBHU NLa
tbnHaHcupaHm og ByleT (< unn=AQ0l
092+AO0T0M 093+A0I1 094+ AOMN 099+ AON
101+ AOIT 107+A0MM 108+ AOTM 109 O BC)

80.615.738,00

25.406.666,00

https://e-submit.crm.com.mklaaoI/Admin/GenerateAAPreview.aspx?aaid= EAIkv2U3NweOnV8T9py6Ag%3d%3d&uid=SvBIHKPzPCBIjRvs3yiTS... 5/8



4/4/24, 12:40 PM

MogHecysatbe FognwHu CMeTkn npeky Beb - LieHTpaneH Perncrap Ha Peny6nvka CesepHa MakeaoHuja

639

- - O6BpCKM NO OCHOB HA TProOBCKUN KpeauTh,
aBaHCcu 1 ocTaHaTh 06BPCKM KOH cuTe
cy6jexTu BO 3eMjaTa U CTPAHCTBO (BKYMHO) (<
nnn=AO0I1 092+A0I1 093+A0IT 094+ AOI
096+ AOIT 097+ AOIT 098+ AOIM 099+ AON
100+ AOI 101+ AOM 107+A0l1 108+ AOMN
109 Of1 BC)

1.011.698.575,00

809.511.374,00

640

- - Mpuxoan og npogaxba Ha CTOKK U ycnyrn
(AOI 641+ AOI 642) (< unu = AOM 202 op,
BY)

38.694.922,00

36.505.935,00

641

- - Mpuxoau og npogaxba Ha CTOKN (< unu =
AOnN 202 op BY)

14.419,00

642

- - NMpuxogw og npopaxba Ha yenyrn (< unu =
AOMN 202 og, BY)

38.694.922,00

36.491.516,00

643

- - Mpuxoau oa npogaxba Ha nponssoau,
CTOKW W yCnyru Ha fioMalleH nasap (< unu =
AOI 202 og BY)

3.997.559.243,00

4.089.577.020,00

644

- - MNpwuxogw oa npogaxta Ha NpousBoan,
CTOKW W YCNYT Ha CTPAaHCKW nasap (< uny =
AOMN 202 oa bY)

2.238.086.179,00

2.368.825.759,00

647

- - [puxogu og HaemHuHa (< unu = AOM 202
og bY)

31.624.293,00

48.188.787,00

648

- - MNpnxoan og HaeMHMHa Ha 3emjuLlTe (<
unu = AOI 202 og BY)

8.188.435,00

4.754.824,00

654

- - MNpuxoan og Buwwouwm (< unu = AOIM 203 og
BY)

3.461.141,00

15.643.723,00

655

- - HannateHu otnuwanun nobapysama u
npuxoam og, oTnuc Ha obspcku (< unm = AQM
203 og BY)

1.810.306,00

110,00

656

- - Npuxoaw Bp3 ocHoBa Ha edeKkTU of
AO0roBOpeHa 3allTuTa oA pusuk (< unu = AOIN
203 oa BY)

28.784.882,00

657

- - Mpunxoaw on npemwn, cybBeHUMK, aoTaLmmn
v goHauuu (< vnun = AOI 203 og bY)

108.530,00

658

- - Mpuxoawm oa cyBseHLmM (< unu = AOM 203
on bY)

4.687.668,00

661

- - Octanatu npuxogu oa paboTereTo (< unu
= AOI 203 og BY)

30.406.870,00

25.468.482,00

667

- - Pacxogu Ha npogageHu npouseoan n
ycnyru

27.888.847,00

668

- - Tpoloun 3a CypoBMHM U MaTepujani (<
unn = AOI 208 og BY)

826.999.017,00

736.685.061,00

669

- - OrpeB, ropueo 1 Masuea (< wim = AOrM
208 oa BY)

15.967.880,00

19.196.544,00

671

- - KaHuenapucku matepujanu (< unu = AOMN
208 og BY)

546.721,00

1.155.314,00

672

- - Tpowoum 3a ambanaxa (< unu = AOM 208
og BY)

176.699.176,00

160.085.139,00

673

- - YHnpopmMu-3aLTMTHa obneka n obysku (<
wnn = AOT 208 op BY)

3.364.874,00

5.186.571,00

674

- - Matepujan 3a uncTetse u ogpxysare (<
vnun = AOM 208 op BY)

173.049,00

890.653,00

676

- - MoTpolleHa enekTpuuHa eHepruja (< unu =
AOI 208 og BY)

652.934.901,00

1.514.334.653,00

677

- - MoTpoLlenn eHepreTcku ropusa (< unm =
AQOI 208 og BY)

919.717.315,00

950.465.273,00

678

- - [MoTpoilenn pesepBHY AeNOBU Y
MaTepujanu 3a oapxysare (< unu = AOr
208 op BY)

83.656.193,00

69.398.529,00

679

- - OTnuc Ha cuTeH MHBEHTap, amBanaxa u
aBTOrymu (Bo npoussoacTteo) (< unu = AOMN
208 oa BY)

2.550.074,00

1.595.379,00

680

- - TpaHCcnopTHK YCNyru Bo semjaTa (< unm =
AOM 211 op BY)

179.020.415,00

190.494.460,00
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-- TpchnopTHm ycnyri BO CTPaHCTBO (< uwnn 00 88.758.214,00

681 = AOM 211 on BY) 71.923.314, /

682 --MTT yenyru Bo 3emjata (< nnu = AOIM 211 2.635.630,00 2.782.250,00
on BY)
- - HapgsopelwHu ycnyrv 3a uspabotka Ha

684 npousBoau (BOH NPOUIBOACTBO) (< Unn = 44.887.413,00 39.207.509,00
AOM 211 og BY)
- - [lpoM3BOACTBEHN N 3aHAESTYUCKN Yenyrn (< 264.368.186,00

685 wnm = AOT 211 on BY) 274.727.886,00
- - HaemHuHM 3a genoBHU npocTopnn BO 1.243.833,00

686 . .wjara (< um = AOM 211 op BY) 1.233.000,00 '

687 - - HaemHuHKM 3a onpema (< unm = AOI 211 9.282.763,00 8.148.029,00
oa bY)
- - HaemHvHa 3a 3emjuwre (< nnu = AOM 211

688 oa BY) 100.008,00
- - EQHOKpaTeH HajoMecToK BO BUA Ha

693 ncnpaTtHWHa 3apagu TpajHo paboTHo 15.844.097.00 16.335.636,00
aHraxuparwe nof, yCnoBy YTBPAEHN CO 3aKOH !
(<unun = AOIN 217 op BY)
- - Perpec 3a rognweH oamop (< unu = AOI 8.427.213.00

695 217 oa BY) 9.324.634,00 427.213,

696 - - Momowtu (< unu = AOTI 217 og BY) 1.161.985,00 1.876.420,00
- - [IHeBHUUM 3a cnyxbOeHu NaTyBakba,

698 HoKeBar-a ¥ NaTHu Tpowoum (< unu = AOMN 7.566.578,00 4.871.093,00
217 op, BY)
- - Hapomectu Ha TpowouuTe Ha

700 BpaboTeHuTe 1 nogapouu (< unu = AOIM 217 14.439.877,00 11.082.144,00
op BY)
- - HapomecTu 3a ogBOEH XUBOT (< unu =

702 AOT 217 oa BY) 210.367,00
- - Mopapoum Ha BpaboTeHuTe (< unu = AOM

703 217 on BY) 12.152.056,00 9.212.558,00
- - Tpowoum 3a opraHusMpaHa ucxpaHa so

704 TekoT Ha pagoTa (< unu = AOTT 217 op BY) 10.643.565,00 10.497.994,00
- - HanomecTtu Ha aHraxupaHa paGoTHa cuna

706 npeky areHuuuTe 3a NPUBPEMEHU 2.201.060,00 1,232.239,00
BpaGoTysara (< unu = AOM 217 of BY)

709 - ~ PenpeseHTauuja (< unu = AOI1 212 op BY) 18.485.,582,00 15.890.746,00
- - lNpemun 3a ocurypysatse Ha UMOT (< Unu =

710 AOTT 212 oa BY) 10.376.861,00 9.620.906,00
- - HagomecT 3a BaHkapcku ycnyru (< unm =

711 AO 212 oz BY) 1.613.098,00 2.428.252,00
- - [laHouyM kou He 3aBUCAT of pe3ynTaToT (<

712 wn = AOT 212 og BY) 9.352.872,00 59.909,00
- - YUneHapuHu Ha 3apyxeHujaTa Bo 3emjaTa n

714 CTpaHcTBO (< unu = AOI 212 og BY) 725.896,00 529.103,00
- - HapomecTtoum 3a nospemeHu u

715 npuspemeHn paboTu (< unu = AOM 217 of 2.192.502,00 2.158.948,00
BY)
- - OcranaTy Tpowoum Ha paboTereTo (< unu

717 = AOT 212 on BY) 105.871.251,00 128.713.422,00
- - KagHu, neHanv HaAoMecToLm 3a WTeTH 1

718 apyro (< wnn = AOM 222 on BY) 995.478,00 9.109,00

721 - - Uennatenu guengeHan 717.376.236,00 258.424.475,00
- - lNpoceyeH Bpoj Ha BpaboTeHK BP3 0CHOBA

722 Ha cocTojfbaTa Ha KpajoT Ha MeceLoT 244,00 239,00
- - MpoceyeH 6poj Ha BpaBoTeHun BoO

723 CeQVLUTETO Ha CyGjekToT Bp3 OCHOBA Ha 242,00 234,00
cocrojbata Ha KpajoT Ha MeceLoT
- - Bpoj Ha NoApPYXHULWM BO KOW ce BpLUM

724 AejHocT, 6e3 ceanLTETO Ha CyGjeKToT 4,00 4,00
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CTpyKTypa Ha NpUXoAu Nno JejHOCTH

Ucnpaeka
Heto 3a Bpyto3a |Ha n
eTxogHa
Dangia 3a Onuc TeKkoBHa TeKoOBHa BpeAaHoOCTa P a
Aon roauHa
roguHa roguHa 3a TeKOBHa
roguvHa
- 08.11 - Bapewe Ha feKopaTUBEH KaMeH u
2047 KaMeH 32 rpajeXxXHULLUTBOTO, BApOBHUK, CYpOB 132.619.629,00
TMnc, Kpeaa v LKpUnum
- 08.99 - OcraHato pynapcTeo 1 Bagerwe Ha
2052 KaMeH, HECMOMHAaTO Ha ApPYyro MecTo 71.577.637,00
- 10.61 - Mpon3soacTBO HA MENHUYKU
2066 nponasoan 700,00
2166 - 23.51 - Mpon3BOACTBO HA LLEMEHT 5.638.480.896,00
2170 - 23.63 - MNpounsBoacTBO Ha rotoea GeToHCKa 155.761.991,00
cmeca
- 46.71 - Tprosuja Ha roneMo co UBPCTH, TEYHU
2370 W racoBUTU ropuBa 1 CINYHN NpoU3BoAU 235.089.589,00
- 46.73 - Tproeuja Ha ronemMo co apea,
2372 rpagexeH marepujan u caHuTapHa onpema 124.150.365,00
- 46.77 - Tprosuja Ha ronemo co oTnagoum 1
2376 ocraToum 4.123.746,00
- 52.21 - YenyxHu aejHocTn noBp3aHu co
2431 KOMHEHWOT NPEBO3 46.263.188,00
- 64.99 - [ipyrn puHaHCUCKO-YCINyKHN
2478 [AEjHOCTI, OCBEH OCUrypyBaH-e W NeH3UCKK 7.284.416,00
POHAOBK, HECTIOMHATU Ha APYro MECTo
- 68.10 - KynyBarse 1 npogaxba Ha concTeeH
2490 HeaBIKEH UMOT 36.376.156,00
- 82.99 - OcraHatu genoBHU NOMOLLHMN
2545 YCNYXHU 4&JHOCTN, HECTIOMHATY Ha APYro 112.258.637,00
MecTo

MoTnuwaHo opn:
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M3jaByBaM, nog MmopanHa, Ma'repvu'anHa M KpnBUYHa OAroBOPHOCT, AeKa nogartounTe BO rogulliHaTa CMeTKa ¢ TOYHW U BUCTUHUTW.
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crpaHa Ha LlenTpanHuot PerucTap.

https://e-submit.crm.com.mklaaoI/Admin/GenerateAAPreview.aspx?aaid=EAIkv2U3NweOnV8T9py6Ag%3d%3d &uid=SvBIHkPzPCBIjRvs3yiTS...

8/8



